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1. PUBLIC ENTITY’S GENERAL INFORMATION

Directors  : Mr M.S Ralebipi (Chairperson); Ms W.N.G Moleko; Mr M.P.K Tshivhase;  Ms M.H Kekana;  

    Mr X.R Mulamula; Adv J.R Bilankulu; Mr M.P Matji (CEO)

Registered Name  : Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd

Registration  Number : 2001/025832/07

Physical Address  : 26 Rabe Street Polokwane 0700

Postal Address  : Private Bag X 9554 Polokwane 0700

Telephone Number : 015 284 4600

Website Address  : www.ral.co.za

External Auditors  : Auditor General of South Africa.

Bankers   : ABSA Bank Limited

Company Secretary : Ms. Tebogo Kekana

2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS

RAL  Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd

LDPWRT Limpopo Department of Public Works, Roads and Infrastructure

AGSA  Auditor General of South Africa

MEC  Member of Executive Council

BBBEE  Broad - Based Black Economic Empowerment

CEO  Chief Executive Officer

ACFO  Acting Chief Financial Officer

PFMA  Public Finance Management Act,1 of 1999

TR  Treasury Regulations

MTEF  Medium Term Expenditure Framework

SMME  Small Medium and Micro Enterprises

SCM  Supply Chain Management

GRAP  Generally Recognised Accounting Practice



8

| Roads Agency Limpopo  | 2016 / 2017 Annual Report |

PART 1:  INTRODUCTION

1.1.  The Annual Report

This is the Annual Report of the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd, which 
incorporates its Financial Performance, as contained in the Audited Annual 
Financial Statements (AFS). The aim of the report is to record the performance 
of Roads Agency Limpopo (RAL) in achieving its pre-determined strategic 
objectives and the implementation of the forecast budget estimates, as 
measured against the approved Annual Performance Plan and Budget.

1.2. Reporting Framework

The two main focal points of the report are: the Audited Performance Information 
and the Audited Annual Financial Statements which are a fair representation of 
the financial position, financial performance and cash flow of RAL; prepared 
in conformity with the framework for the preparation and presentation of the 
Financial Statements, as well as the Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 
Standards.

The Annual Report is in conformity with section 55(1) and (2) of the PFMA, 
section 30 of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, sections 36 and 37 of the Limpopo 
Roads Agency Proprietary Limited and Provincial Roads Act 7 of 1998, as 
amended, as well as regulation 28.2.2 of the Treasury Regulations.

1.3. Approval of the Annual Report

The Board of Directors  confirms that this Annual Report fairly represents the performance 
of RAL for the financial year under review. The Audit and Risk Committee of the Board, 
upon which the oversight and performance monitoring function has been vested, has duly 
considered the Annual Report and recommended it to the Board for approval. The report 
was approved by the Board  on 28 July 2017.

Mr. M.S. Ralebipi      Mr. M.P Matji Pr. CPM 

Chairperson: Board of Directors    Chief Executive Officer  
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PART 2: GENERAL

2.1.  About RAL

RAL is a State-owned company, registered as such in terms of the Companies 
Act 71 of 2008, and is listed as a Provincial Public Entity under Schedule 3C 
of the PFMA. It was founded in 1999, through its constitutive Act, the Limpopo 
Roads Agency Proprietary Limited and Provincial Roads Act 7 of 1998, as 
amended. The sole mandate of RAL is to act as an implementing agent of the 
Limpopo Provincial Government, under the auspices of the Limpopo Department 
of Public Works, Roads and Infrastructure.

RAL has been mandated to manage, control, plan, develop, and maintain the 
provincial road network on behalf of the provincial government. The road asset 
portfolio of RAL measures in the extent of  20 260 kilometres (km), of which only 
5 974 km is tarred and the balance of 14 286 km is gravel roads. The Agency 
obtains its revenue from the Limpopo Provincial Government, in the form of the 
Provincial Roads Maintenance Grant (PRMG) and equitable share. The total 
budget allocation for the year under review, for both PRMG and equitable share 
was  R836 million.

RAL has for the year under review upgraded 46km, rehabilitated 122.51 
lanes, resealed 254.971 lanes and built 2 bridges. An estimated amount of  
R160 billion would be required in order to enable RAL to tar the 14 286 km of 
gravel roads. Despite the budgetary constraints, RAL strives to employ all its 
endeavours to eradicate the backlog of gravel roads that require tarring. 

In this regard, RAL has secured strategic Private Public Partnerships (PPPs) in 
an effort to raise additional funds. Through the PPP strategy, RAL has already 
raised more than 300 million and continues to secure more partnerships.

Furthermore, RAL, in its endeavour to tar its road network, has sourced the 
services of a transaction advisor to explore various financing mechanisms 
available to RAL in order to strengthen its revenue streams. 

RAL has for the year under review 
upgraded 46km, rehabilitated 122.51 lanes, 
resealed 254.971 lanes and built 2 bridges.
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3. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

3.1 Vision

To Contribute to the socio-economic development by connecting the 
people of Limpopo Province.

3.2 Mission

To provide quality and sustainable provincial road infrastructure 
network for the economic development of Limpopo Province.

3.3 Values

Core values

The way we conduct ourselves and our business in pursuit of our vision and 
mission is underpinned and guided by the following corporate values:

• Commitment

We are committed to serving the province with pride

• Reliability

We offer reliable, safe and economic roads infrastructure

• Efficiency

We will go an extra mile in serving our communities

• Accountability

We remain accountable to all our stakeholders

• Transparency

We are transparent in both our internal and external business processes

• Excellence

We exceed expectations

• Teamwork

Together for better roads

• Diversity

We value and embrace diversity within the work context
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4. FOREWORD BY THE MEC

The accelerated provision of quality and expansive road network remains one 
of the critical drivers and facilitators of foreign direct investment and economic 
integration in the province. Without a robust road network, it will be difficult 
to achieve our regional integration and socio-economic development goals. 
The Limpopo Development Plan (LDP) will remain a lifeless blueprint without 
the backing of a well thought-out provincial road governance model. At the 
heart of our road asset governance framework is the Roads Agency Limpopo 
(RAL). RAL has been mandated by the Provincial Government through the 
Department of Public Works,Roads and Infrastructure to drive and oversee all 
road construction and maintenance projects in the province.  

It is imperative that we keep our roads in a good state at all times in order 
to achieve greater business-to-business, village-to-village, and city-to-city 
connectivity and linkages. We are also alive to the fact that the vision of 
delivering an excellent road network to the province cannot be fully realised 
when government underestimates the critical role played by the private 
sector and local communities.  Through experience, we have learnt that the 
business of constructing and maintaining provincial roads must be a shared 
responsibility. The truth of the matter is that government alone cannot build 
and maintain the road construction momentum in the absence of key partners 
like the private sector. 

We remain resolute on the need to invest in a cost effective and labour-intensive 
road construction framework. We will always prefer road construction models 
that are grassroot based and driven. We want our local youth to be on the 
forefront of the province’s road construction and maintenance agenda. We 
need to extend more road construction and maintenance tender opportunities 
to locally-trained civil engineers, planners, quantity surveyors, road technicians 
and architects. We need to build closer ties with our local universities and 

Hon Jeremiah Ndou

MEC: Department of Public Works,Roads & Infrastructure
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Further Education and Training Colleges to ensure uninterrupted supply of 
young engineers and technicians to Roads Agency Limpopo (RAL). RAL must 
play a catalytic and enabling role in ensuring that this ambition is translated into 
concrete action. 

It is also critical that we maintain our road network to enhance the province and 
its long standing road safety objectives. The war against high incidences of 
road carnage on our provincial roads can only be won if we continuously honour 
our pledge to deliver a world-class road network. As its shareholder we will 
continue to provide strategic leadership and vision to ensure that RAL becomes 
the centre of road construction excellence in Africa. We want RAL to be a road 
project manager and technical partner of choice in Africa.

Our long-standing  desire is to deliver a world-class road infrastructure that will 
reinforce the business competitiveness and investment appeal of our province. 
A good road network enhances the province’s easy-to-do business leverage. 
Frequently repaired and upgraded roads make the province an object of 
admiration of road users, tourists and investors. 

As a shareholder department, we are pleased to announce that RAL has 
made great strides in persuading the private sector into its fold. Through the 
facilitative efforts of RAL’s leadership, strategic partnerships worth millions of 
rands have been signed. This has significantly improved RAL’s technical and 
financial leverage. We implore the RAL leadership to continue doing a sterling 
job in steering the entity in this direction. It is also a pleasure to announce that 
the shrewd implementation of the RAL’s turnaround strategy, led by the current 
leadership, has been bearing notable dividends.  For the first time since RAL’s 
turbulent past, the Agency has received an unqualified audit opinion. As RAL’s 
shareholder, we urge the leadership to defend these hard- won gains and 
ensure that RAL continues to play a prominent role in delivering 21st century 
standard roads to the province.

It is imperative that we keep our roads 
in good state every time in order to 

achieve greater business-to-business, 
village-to-village, and city-to-city 

connectivity and linkages.
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5. STATEMENT BY THE BOARD CHAIRMAN

As the Board of Directors, we fully embrace the view that connecting people, 
villages, cities and businesses through a dependable road network is our core 
business. RAL has come to realise that its top priority is not only to build and 
maintain roads, but rather to provide the road infrastructure connecting link for 
all stakeholders through a well-maintained and expansive road network. We 
have embraced a new business narrative. In this narrative, we view roads as 
the means to the end and not vice versa. We understand that this uphill task of 
connecting people and cities can never be fully achieved without the steadfast 
support of our shareholder and trusted partners in the private sector. We also 
salute the laudable work of RAL management and employees for effectively 
putting the RAL brand at the forefront of road construction projects in the 
province and even beyond.  

One thing we have learnt in the previous financial year is that the art or science 
of linking people and businesses is a collective responsibility that must be 
shared equally among the three spheres of stakeholders; the government, 
private sector and local communities. While the government strives to create an 
enabling policy environment, the private sector brings its rare skills and social 
capital and, communities on the other hand render their social support and 
skills. For road construction projects to succeed, this tripartite relationship must 
be kept functional and healthy at all times. 

As a Board, we are happy to inform stakeholders that, throughout the 2016/2017 
financial year, RAL has enjoyed the overwhelming confidence and trust of 
the shareholder, the private sector and local communities. This confidence 
is demonstrated by the fact that, the Agency’s strategic partnership initiative 
has positively generated more than R300 million road construction project 
capital from the private sector. Our host communities continued to support 
our flagship projects because those projects are a major source of jobs and 
income for unemployed local youth.  In the next financial year, we will continue 

Mr. Matome Solomon Ralebipi

Chairperson: Board of Directors
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to consolidate gains made in the past and in the process, make frantic efforts to 
recruit new private partners into our thriving Startegic Partnership club. 

In the year under review the Board is proud to announce that, unlike in the past, 
RAL has managed to turn the corner against a history of poor audit results.  
The unqualified audit opinion expressed by the Auditor General symbolises a 
crushing victory against tender corruption, irregular and fruitless expenditure 
and imprudent financial management behaviour which used to characterise the 
Agency in the past. However, this victory needs to be embraced and jealously 
protected. As a Board, we remain committed to ensuring  that the Agency’s 
early fraud and risk detection systems remain vigilant and resilient. We will 
ensure that the detection processes such as internal audit, Risk Management 
and Proactive Assurance remain resolute in guaranteeing the integrity of the 
Agency’s internal controls and governance framework. This indicates that the 
Agency’s risk and governance attitude is coming of age. We will continue to 
reward and retain employees who demonstrate integrity and morality in their 
execution of the Agency’s business.  

The Board and the executive team must also be applauded for internalising 
and judiciously implementing the Turnaround Strategy. One of the milestones 
achieved by RAL during the financial year was the successful cleansing of 
the Supply Chain Management database. The Agency took a harsh stance 
against contractors who have exposed the Agency to serious transactional and 
reputational risks. The introduction of the Central Supplier Database (CSD) by 
the National Treasury at the inception of the financial year has assisted RAL 
greatly in this regard. Going forward, we continue to demand value for money 
from those who do business with us. Our approach is to ensure that we recoup 
the most attractive returns in every rand invested in road construction and 
maintenance projects. We want to ensure that no single rand invested in RAL 
from the shareholder and other partners is misused.

 As a Board, we have come to 
realise that our top priority is not 
to build and maintain roads, but 
rather to connect or link people, 

villages, businesses and cities via 
a well maintained and expansive 

road network.
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6. OVERVIEW BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

The task of delivering an enviable road network that will form the basis on which 
our villages, people, tourists and businesses are linked and connected together 
is not a task that can be achieved by a single entity. As a government Agency, with 
a legislative mandate to drive the road construction and maintenance agenda of 
the province, we remain committed to the idea of uniting all progressive forces 
behind this noble agenda. We recognise that the private sector must join efforts 
with government to ensure that the province’s road network is amongst the best 
in Africa. We are happy at the positive response we have received from the 
private sector. 

The sector invested more than R300 million since 2015/16 financial year into the 
road construction and maintenance. This injection has significantly improved 
our operating leverage. The confidence we continue to receive from the private 
sector is valid proof that our brand image and integrity in the eyes of our key 
partners has improved  significantly. Our desire, going forward, is to maintain 
the momentum for change and ensure that we transform the RAL brand into one 
of the enviable brands in Africa. 

We are also delighted that our relationship with district and local municipalities 
continues to be strong. We have fostered a relationship based on close 
cooperation with most municipalities. We see the future of the Agency being 
underpinned by a strong and vibrant strategic partnership. Our intention is to 
reposition RAL as a government strategic partner of choice. We are eager 
to unlock extra financial value for the Agency through signing more winning 
strategic partnership deals. The rate at which we are wooing value-adding 
partners into the RAL family, I will not be surprised in the next financial year to 
report a 100% increase in partnership growth. 

Another issue worth reporting is the great strides achieved in improving the 

Mr. Maselaganye Petrus Matji

Chief Executive Officer
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Agency’s audit outcomes. Through a combination of hard work and resolute 
adherence to the PFMA, Treasury Regulations, practice and instruction notes, 
we have achieved an unqualified audit opinion, a feat worth celebrating. We 
have also strengthened our internal fraud detection processes. We have 
declared war against fruitless and wasteful expenditure, and irregular spending 
behaviour. We have also exercised fiscal prudence by outlawing all forms of 
unbudgeted spending.  

The strict budget control culture we have introduced is paying dividends. As 
part of the Agency’s fiscal prudence initiative, we have effectively dragged the 
Agency into an austerity mood.  We also complied with every aspect of the 
Treasury’s procurement directives. We insisted that contractors should only be 
contracted if there is proof that their services are rendered on a value-for-money 
basis. We have successfully cleansed our supplier database of all contractors 
who have a history of short-changing the Agency. 

As directed by the Board in the period under review, RAL has also stepped 
up the campaign against the “so called Bermuda roads”. We have adopted a 
new business narrative, which outlaws the culture of poor workmanship from 
a certain section of unscrupulous contractors. We have sent a strong message 
to our contractors that RAL will not tolerate, at any given moment, contractors 
who transgress the rules of engagement. Our ethical and value based approach 
to contractor management has paid notable fruits. This campaign managed to 
reduce the Bermuda roads by 70%. Our aim in the next financial year is to 
achieve a zero-incidence rate of Bermuda roads.  

In line with the Limpopo  Development Plan (LDP)’s call for government agencies 
to reserve a significant portion of tenders to SMMEs and Cooperatives, it is 
encouraging to report that in the past financial year, RAL witnessed a 30% 
increase in SMME and cooperative participation in our road construction and 
maintenance projects. This initiative injected nearly 10 000 direct jobs in the 
local economy. Our insistence that contractors who do business with us “employ 
local” has earned RAL unequivocal support from grassroots institutions like 
traditional leadership and community pressure groups. 

Through this initiative, we have managed to reduce community protests in areas where we 
do business significantly. As part of our business strategy, we have adopted a grassroots 
approach to road construction and maintenance in the province. This approach is 
inclusive in character and participatory in practice. We have managed to build a pro-RAL 
movement of youth, women, men who now act as RAL’s brand ambassadors in all our host 
communities. 

Lastly, during the reporting financial year, RAL continued to enjoy the trust and support of 
its internal stakeholders. Through our well planned and intelligently executed employee 
engagement forums, our employees continue to sacrifice their all in ensuring that the RAL 
brand retains its status as an employer of choice in the province. As part of our employee 
development interventions, RAL made an investment to advance its employee reskilling 
and funding students pursuing various road engineering degrees at various universities in 
the country.

As a government Agency with a 
legislative mandate to drive the 

road construction and maintenance 
agenda of the province, we remain 

committed to the idea of uniting 
all progressive forces behind this 

noble agenda.
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RAL ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Limpopo Provincial Government

MEC: Department of Public 
Works Roads and Infrastructure

Board of Directors

GM:

GM: Operations & 
Contractor Development

Executive Manager: 
Engineering

Executive Manager: 
Corporate Services
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(Board Member)
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Mr MP Matji
(CEO)

Ms L Fosu
(CFO)

Mr K Tulsi
(GM: Planning and Design)

Mr K Maphutha
(Senior Manager: Risk 

and Compliance)



21| Roads Agency Limpopo  | 2016 / 2017 Annual Report |

Mr M Ramaboea
(GM: Construction 
 and Operations)

Ms MJ Boshielo
(Executive Manager: 
Corporate Services)

Ms TC Kekana
(Company Secretary)



22

| Roads Agency Limpopo  | 2016 / 2017 Annual Report |

PA
R

T B
  |  PER

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E IN
FO

R
M

ATIO
N



23| Roads Agency Limpopo  | 2016 / 2017 Annual Report |



24

| Roads Agency Limpopo  | 2016 / 2017 Annual Report |

1.  SITUATION ANALYSIS

1.1  Service Delivery Environment

The province currently has 20 260 kilometres(km) of roads, of which 
5 974 km is tarred and 14 286 km is gravel. The Agency obtains its 
revenue from the Provincial Road Maintenance Grant (PRMG), as well 
as equitable share from the Limpopo Provincial Treasury. Despite the 
constrained annual allocation of funds, RAL is committed to working 
tirelessly to eradicate the backlog of gravel or dirt provincial roads in 
Limpopo. In this regard, RAL has secured strategic partnerships in an 
effort to raise additional funds to supplement its allocation .

Due to budgetary constraints, the road network in the Limpopo Province 
has been deteriorating. Insufficient funds for maintanance has led to 
a disintegration of roads. However, RAL endeavours to execute its 
mandate within the available financial resources. The Agency has 
successfully completed the construction of new roads and those roads 
have had a positive impact on the economy of the Limpopo province in 
terms of facilitation of business transportation of goods and services.

The Board has approved the revised RAL organogram in January 2017 to ensure that the 
Agency is attracting qualified employees to ensure that it becomes agile and responsive 
to service delivery challenges experienced in Limpopo Province in terms of roads backlog.

The other vacant key operational positions, particularly in the engineering unit, are 
scheduled to be filled.

Once these strategic positions are filled, the Agency will be able to implement some of its 

projects efficiently and effectively.

1.2  Key policy developments and legislative changes

There has been no significant changes to the institution’s legislative and other mandates in 
the financial year under review, save for the introduction of the King IV Report on Corporate 
Governance at the end of the Financial Year.
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2. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

1. LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY    
 PERFORMANCE REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The purpose of this report is to account on the Agency’s performance for the 
year under review and to report on the performance of the entity, as measured 
against the pre-determined objectives, as set out in the Strategic Plan and 
Annual Performance Plan (APP) for the 2016/17 Financial Year. 

The Board of Directors is required in terms of section 55 (1) and (2) of the 
PFMA, Section 30 of the Companies Act, sections 36 and 37 of the Limpopo 
Roads Agency Proprietary Limited and Provincial Agency Act, regulation 28.2.2 
of the Treasury Regulations to keep full and proper records of the financial 
affairs of RAL and to have these records audited. It is a further requirement that 
an Annual Report on the activities of RAL during a Financial Year be published.

2. PROGRESS ON NON-FINANCIAL    
 PERFORMANCE TARGETS

In terms of the set quarterly targets which are outlined in the APP, there are 
specific areas in which the entity exceeded its targets and areas where there was 
under-performance. In the period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017, a total of 
61 targets were set. Out of sixty-one (61) targets, thirty-four (34) were achieved, 
nine (9) were partially achieved and seventeen (16) were not achieved. The 
significant areas which are noteworthy are as follows:
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PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION

Programme 1: Goal 1 To create a culture of Good Corporate Governance

Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for 
Variance

Planned 
Interventions

Expenditure per 
target

To comply fully with the 
applicable legislative 
requirements, rules, 
codes and standards 
(Legislative)

Strict adherence to 
statutory and regulatory 
requirements.

All statutory and 
regulatory requirements 
complied with.

Not achieved. Awaiting Treasury 
Evaluation Report.

A self-assessment 
tool to be developed 
to track compliance 
with laws and 
regulations.

None, operational 
task.

Implementation of 
an effective contract 
management system.

An effective contract 
of Management 
System developed and 
implemented.

Achieved

Contract Management 
System (A Contract Register) 
has been developed and is 
being implemented.

None None None, operational 
task.

Effective Legal Advisory 
Services maintained.

4 Quarterly Status 
Reports on resolution of 
legal matters.

Achieved

4 Quarterly Reports on 
resolution of legal matters.

None None None, operational 
task.
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Programme 1: Goal 1 To create a culture of Good Corporate Governance

Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for Variance Planned Interventions Expenditure per 
target

Create sustainable and 
effective ERM culture 
that improves the 
likelihood of achieving 
RAL objectives 
(Risk Management).

Risk Management 
process regulated.

Approved Risk 
Management 
Regulations.

Achieved.

The Enterprise Risk 
Management Strategy, 
Policy Framework, 
and Enterprise 
Risk Management 
Implementation Plan 
has been approved.

None None None, operational task.

Risk affecting 
performance identified 
by process owners.

1 Risk Assessment 
Report.

Achieved

1 Risk Assessment 
Report.

None None None, operational task.

Identified Risks 
mitigated.

100% 27% SM: GRC was only 
appointed on the 1st of 
March 2017 to facilitate the 
Risk Management process.

N/A None, operational task.

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION
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Create sustainable and 
effective Enterprise Risk 
Management Culture 
that improves the 
likelihood of archiving 
RAL objectives  
(Risk Management)

Implementation of 
corrective actions to 
rectify weaknesses 
identified by the Auditor 
General.

100 % of the reported 
weaknesses rectified.

83.87% The remaining findings that 
will be resolved in the AFS 
are:

•	 Opening balance of the 
PPE and; 

•	 Completeness of 
irregular expenditure.

In addition to the above, the 
outstanding findings are:

•	 VAT registration – 
RAL management 
is in the process of 
finalising application for 
exemption.

•	 RAL is in the process 
of appointing a service 
provider to review RAL 
Act.  This is a lengthy 
process. 

None None, operational task.

Approved Fraud 
Prevention Plan.

Fraud Prevention Plan 
has been approved.

Achieved. 
The Fraud Prevention 
Plan has been 
approved.

None None None, Operational 
Task.

Fraud Awareness 
Programme 
implemented.

1 Fraud Awareness 
Programme 
implemented.

Not achieved Delays in the appointment 
of a service provider 
to facilitate the Fraud 
Awareness workshop.

Request Provincial 
Treasury to assist with 
facilitation of the Fraud 
Awareness workshop.

None, Operational 
Task.

Programme 1: Goal 1 To create a culture of Good Corporate Governance

Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for Variance Planned Interventions Expenditure per 
target

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION
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Programme 1: Goal 2 To create a culture of Good Corporate Governance

Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for Variance Planned Interventions Expenditure per target

Maintain a system of 
Internal Audit under the 
control and direction 
of the Audit and Risk 
Committee  
(Internal Audit)

Internal Audit Plan 
aligned to the Risk 
Assessment Report has 
been submitted to the 
Board.

Approved Annual 
Plan aligned to 
prioritised risks, 
statutory requirements, 
high and areas of 
significant financial and 
performance impact.

Achieved

2017/18 Annual Plan 
developed.

None None None, operational task.

Quarterly Internal Audit 
Reports submitted to 
Board.

4 Quarterly Reports on 
implementation of the 
Annual Plan.

Achieved

4 Quarterly Reports on 
the implementation of 
the Annual Plan.

None None None, operational task.

Verification of quarterly 
performance targets 
reports.

Verification of 50% of 
the quarterly targets 
were reported.

Achieved

50 % of reported 
quarterly targets 
verified.

None None None, operational task.

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION
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PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION

Sub Programme: Asset Management

Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for Variance Planned Interventions Expenditure per 
target

(Asset Management) A reviewed and updated 
Road Infrastructure Asset 
Register.

1 Fixed Asset 
Register.

Not achieved. The Engineering Asset Register 
has been completed and the 
process of translating the 
Register into a Financial Asset 
Register is being finalised.

A service provider has 
been appointed to 
translate the Technical 
Fixed Asset Register 
to a Fixed Asset 
Register for accounting 
purposes. This should 
be completed when 
submitting the year end 
AFS to AGSA.

None, operational 
task.

Sub Programme: Financial Management

To ensure the improved 
quality of the overall 
Financial Management via 
efficient implementation 
of the approved Financial 
Policies

(Financial Management)

Decrease in the value of 
irregular expenditure.

0 COFs Not achieved Historical irregular expenditure 
identified in Quarter 4 as part 
of developing an Irregular 
Expenditure Register.

Appropriate internal 
controls and systems 
have been put in place 
to reduce any future 
irregular expenditure.

None, operational 
task.

Decrease in the number 
of unresolved COF’s for 
Finance & SCM during 
year-end audit.

0 Not achieved 6 audit findings remain 
unresolved for Finance. All SCM 
findings have been resolved.

There is a continuous 
process to address the 
2015/16-year end audit 
findings.

None, operational 
task.

Capital projects 
expenditure spending 
within the budget.

Capital 
Expenditure as 
0% of budget 
within 95%-100%

Achieved 

115% 

Most projects performed at 
high speed than planned hence 
projects exceeded the initial 
budget for current year.

None None, operational 
task.

Operational expenditure 
spending within the 
budget.

90% to 110% Achieved

97%

Strict budget controls since 
most planned administration 
activities were achieved in prior 
periods. 

None None, operational 
task.
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Sub Programme: Financial Management

Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for Variance Planned Interventions Expenditure per 
target

To ensure the improved 
quality of overall financial 
management via 
efficient implementation 
of approved Financial 
Policies.

(Financial Management)

Procurement from BBBEE 
within the target.

100% Achieved 

100% 

None None None, operational 
task.

Deviation from the SCM 
Regulations and policies.

0% Not achieved

5%

Deviations such as special 
accommodation being 
arranged for safety and security 
purposes, accommodation 
being at the same venue where 
the event was held and single 
service providers.

N/A None, operational 
task.

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION
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PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION

Sub Programme 1: Human Resources Management

Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for Variance Planned Interventions Expenditure per 
target

Implementation of 
Performance Management 
and Development System.

Updated and approved 
Organisational Structure.

Approved 
Structure

Achieved

Approved Structure.

None None None, operational 
task.

Number of filled vacancies. Filled Vacancies. Achieved 

Filled Vacancies.

None None R697 884.45

Reviewing HR Policies and 
Procedures and amend where 
necessary in keeping with the 
industry’s best practices.

Reviewed and approved 
HR Policy Framework.

Reviewed and 
approved HR 
Policy Framework

Not achieved. A draft HR Policy 
Framework draft document 
has been developed and 
awaiting approval

A final draft document 
to be submitted to the 
Board for approval in the 
1st quarter of the 2017/18 
Financial Year.

None, operational 
task.

Training and Development. Approved HR Training 
Plan.

Approved HR 
Training Plan

Achieved None None R788 772.24

To have available, always, 
an up-to-date Post –
Establishment that is in line 
with the Employment Equity 
Statistics.

Approved 5-year Employee 
Equity Plan.

Approved 5-year 
Employee Equity 
Plan

Achieved

Approved Employee 
Equity Plan.

None None None

Successful quarterly PMS 
reviews, completed PMS 
instruments.

Successful 
Quarterly 
PMS reviews, 
completed PMS 
Instruments.

Not achieved. Failure by divisions to 
submit performance 
assessments.

All outstanding 
assessments to be 
finalised in the first 
quarter of the 2017/18 
Financial Year.

None, operational 
task

Provision of HR Benefits and 
Administration function.

Conducting Annual 
Remuneration Surveys and 
Benchmarking to achieve 
competitive remuneration.

Competitive 
Remuneration.

Not achieved. Late submission of the 
Survey Memorandum.

Conduct the surveys in 
the first quarter of the 
2017/18 Financial Year.

R200 000.00
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Sub Programme 1: Human Resources Management

Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for Variance Planned Interventions Expenditure per target

Facilitate and implement 
Employee Wellness 
Programme (EWP)

Established Effective 
Employee Wellness 
Programme.

Established effective 
Employee Wellness 
Programme.

Not achieved. Delayed procurement 
of Service Provider.

Employee Wellness 
Programme to be spread 
throughout the year 
instead of a set date.

R200 000.00

Facilities Management. Well-maintained Building 
Facilities and availability 
of office space and tools 
of trade.

Well-maintained 
building facilities and 
availability of office 
space and tools of 
trade.

Achieved None Full capacitation of the 
Unit.

None, operational task.

Provision of Safety Health & 
Environment (SHE) Working 
Environment 

To comply with all SHE 
Statutory Requirements.

To comply with 
all SHE Statutory 
Requirements. 

Not achieved. Delays in the 
procurement of a 
service provider 
to conduct SHE 
assessments.

Transfer of the SHE 
functions to Risk & 
Compliance Division.

None, operational task.

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION
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Sub Programme 2: Communications

Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for 
Variance

Planned 
Interventions

Expenditure per 
target

(Communications) Approved Communication 
Strategy and 
Implementation Plan.

Approved 
Communications 
Strategy.

Not achieved. There were delays 
in reviewing the 
Communication 
Strategy by 
external experts 
due to budget 
constraints.

Budgeted for in 2017/18 
Financial Year.

0

Implementation of 
approved Stakeholder 
Management Plan.

Approved Stakeholder 
Management Plan.

Achieved

Approved Stakeholder 
Management Plan.

None N/A None, operational 
task.

Signed Strategic 
Partnership Agreements 
with private sector.

Concluded 5 
Agreements with 
Strategic Partners.

Achieved.

5 Agreements with 
Strategic Partners.

None None None, operational 
task.

Published 2015/16 Annual 
Report.

Published 1 Annual 
Report.

Achieved

Published 1 Annual 
Report.

None N/A R410 000.00

Published and 
distributed External 
Newsletter.

Achieved.

Published 4 external 
Newsletter.

None N/A None, operational 
task.

Operational Intranet and 
Website updated regularly. 

Updated and 
interactive Website 
and Intranet.

Achieved.

Updated and Interactive 
and Intranet.

None None None, operational 
task.

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION

External Newsletter 
published quarterly and 
distributed to stakeholders.
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Sub Programme 3: Information Technology
Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for Variance Planned Interventions Expenditure per 

target

To create a culture 
of good Corporate 
Governance 
(Information 
Technology)

Approved IT Strategy and 
Implementation Plan.

1 Approved IT Strategy 
and implementation Plan.

Achieved

1 IT Strategy and 
Implementation 
Plan has been 
approved.

None N/A None, operational 
task.

Approved IT Risk Register. 1 Approved IT Risk 
Register.

Achieved

Approved 1 IT Risk 
Register.

None None None, operational 
task.

Approved Information 
System Implementation 
Plan.

1 Approved Information 
Systems Implementation 
Plan.

Not achieved Waiting for Board 
approval in Quarter 1 of 
2017/18.

Approval by the Board 
in Quarter 1 of 2017/18.

None, operational 
task.

Reviewed Approved 
Information Security Policy.

1 Approved Information 
Security Policy.

Achieved

1 approved 
Information 
Security Policy.

None None None, operational 
task.

Approved IT Disaster 
Recovery Plan.

1 Approved Disaster 
Recovery Plan.

Not achieved. A tender for a service 
provider to provide off-
site DR site.

Tender consideration by 
Evaluation Committee. 

None, operational 
task.

Approved Knowledge and 
Records Management 
Plan.

1 Approved Knowledge 
and Records 
Management Plan.

Not achieved. Awaiting Board approval 
in Quarter 1 of 2017/18.

To be submitted for 
approval by the Board 
in Quarter 1 of 2017/18.

None, operational 
task.

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION
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PROGRAMME 2:  ROADS INFRASTRUCTURE

QUARTERLY TARGETS

Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for 
Variance

Planned 
Interventions

Expenditure per target

To identify, prioritise, plan 
and design sustainable 
road infrastructure 
projects in an annual basis 
(Planning and Design).

RAL approved project list 
– 2017/18 Financial Year.

1 Achieved

1 Project List-2017/18 
Financial Year 
approved.

None None None, operational task.

Developing of project 
designs -2017/18 
Financial Year.

22 Achieved

22 designs

None None R79 739 520.45

Updating the Upgrading 
Master Plan annually.

1 Achieved None None None, operational task.

Conducting visual 
assessments on all paved 
roads (5 856) annually.

Report Achieved

Report

None None R936 890.33

Conducting visual 
assessments on all gravel 
roads 

(14 118km) annually.

- 1 There was no planned 
target in the APP but 1 
report was achieved

- -

Conducting Visual 
Assessments on all 
bridges (733) every 5 
years as required by the 
DORA.

- 1 There was no planned 
target in the APP but 1 
report was achieved

- -

Updating the Maintenance 
Plan.

Report Achieved

Report

None None None, operational task.
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PROGRAMME 2:  ROADS INFRASTRUCTURE

QUARTERLY TARGETS

Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for 
Variance

Planned 
Interventions

Expenditure per target

To identify, prioritise, plan 
and design sustainable 
road infrastructure 
projects in an annual basis 
(Planning and Design).

RAL approved project list 
– 2017/18 Financial Year.

1 Achieved

1 Project List-2017/18 
Financial Year 
approved.

None None None, operational task.

Developing of project 
designs -2017/18 
Financial Year.

22 Achieved

22 designs

None None R79 739 520.45

Updating the Upgrading 
Master Plan annually.

1 Achieved None None None, operational task.

Conducting visual 
assessments on all paved 
roads (5 856) annually.

Report Achieved

Report

None None R936 890.33

Conducting visual 
assessments on all gravel 
roads 

(14 118km) annually.

- 1 There was no planned 
target in the APP but 1 
report was achieved

- -

Conducting Visual 
Assessments on all 
bridges (733) every 5 
years as required by the 
DORA.

- 1 There was no planned 
target in the APP but 1 
report was achieved

- -

Updating the Maintenance 
Plan.

Report Achieved

Report

None None None, operational task.

Sub-Programme 2: Construction & Operations

Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for Variance Planned Interventions Expenditure per target

To implement and manage 
contracts for upgrading and 
maintenance on an annual 
basis according to the protocol 
of supervision and SHE 
Contractor’s Compliance Pack  
(Construction and 
Operations).

Number of km of gravel 
roads surfaced.

73 km 46.90km Annual targets were 
based on the provisional 
budget. The final budget 
allocations were less 
than the provisional 
budget.

None R541 177 205.77

Number of lane km 
of surfaced roads 
rehabilitated.

175 lane km 122.99 lane km Annual target was 
based on the provisional 
budget. The final budget 
allocations were less 
than the provisional 
budget.

None R122 920 990.49

Number of m2 of 
surfaced roads 
resealed.

Amended to: [Number 
of m² of surfaced roads 
resealed]

444 500 m 254 971 m² Annual targets were 
based on the provisional 
budget. The final budget 
allocations were less 
than the provisional 
budget.

None R64 298 064.73

Number of bridges 
completed.

4 2 Two bridges could not 
be completed in Q4 i.e. 
project T652 due to rains 
and delays. 

Accelerate progress 
on site to complete 
surfacing of the 
bridges.

R66 675 311.15

Conduct Quality 
Assurance Audits 
(independent) on all 
completed projects- 
2015/16 financial year.

Report Not Achieved

0 Report

Delays in procurement 
processes.

To be procured in the 
first Quarter of 2017/18

N/A

PROGRAMME 2:  ROADS INFRASTRUCTURE
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Sub-Programme: Land Use Management

Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for Variance Planned Interventions Expenditure per 
Target

To manage, control and protect 
the use of road reserves and 
building restriction areas 
continuously 
(Land Use Management).

Number of applications 
processed (in compliance 
with RAL Standards).

460 466 This is demand-driven 
i.e. RAL reports on 
received and processed 
applications.

None None, operational 
task.

To ensure compliance 
to Safety, Health and 
Environmental Management 
Legislation 
(SHE).

Number of SHE Compliance 
Reports submitted (In 
compliance with RAL 
standards).

4 Achieved

4 Reports

None None None, operational 
task.

Sub-Programme: Stakeholder Management

Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for Variance Planned Intervention Expenditure per 
Target

To consult stakeholders 
(Traditional Authorities, 
Municipalities, Communities) 
on all planned projects 
(Stakeholders).

Quarterly Stakeholder 
Consultation Reports.

4 Achieved

4 Reports

None None None, operational 
task.

PROGRAMME 2:  ROADS INFRASTRUCTURE
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To create job opportunities 
in accordance with EPWP 
guidelines on all contracts 
annually 
(Job Creation).

Number of FTE (Full Time 
Equivalent) Jobs creates.

397 Achieved

1 747

The 19 Household 
Projects transferred to 
RAL contributed to the 
improved output.

None R50 258 902.85

Amount (Rands) spent on 
employing labour.

R21 628m Achieved

R61 178 244.58

Higher expenditure 
recorded due to more 
labour.

None R61 178 244.58

To promote the development 
of SMME’s on all contracts 
annually 
(Empowerment).

Update database for 
emerging contractors 
annually.

1 Updated 
Database.

Not achieved Low turnout of 
respondents and high 
levels of non-compliance. 

To re-issue the tender in 
2017/18 Financial Year.

None, operational 
task.

Amount paid to SMME’s 
Contractors and Sub-
Contractors.

R88m Achieved

R155m

Additional projects 
transferred to RAL. 

None R155 215 052.78

To ensure training of 
locally based workers in all 
contracts on an ongoing basis 
(Accredited Training Only. 
The indicator excludes on 
the job training).

Number of local workers 
trained.

360 Achieved

348

Further training will be 
conducted in the 2017/18 
Financial Year.

Conduct more training 
in the 2017/18 Financial 
Year. 

R921 337.09

Strategic Objective Performance Indicator Annual Target Annual Output Reasons for Variance Planned Interventions Expenditure per 
Target

PROGRAMME 2:  ROADS INFRASTRUCTURE
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RAL  No. DISTRICT ACTION

T653 Capricorn Upgrading of road (Gravel to tar)

T694 Capricorn  Preventative Maintenance 

T591 Mopani Upgrading of road (Gravel to tar)

T657 Mopani Upgrading of road (Gravel to tar)

T687 Mopani  Preventative Maintenance 

T535C Sekhukhune  Upgrading 

T695 Sekhukhune  Preventative Maintenance 

T697 Sekhukhune  Preventative Maintenance 

T697B Sekhukhune  Preventative Maintenance 

T349D Vhembe  Upgrading 

T658B Vhembe  Preventative Maintenance 

T706 Vhembe  Preventative Maintenance 

T547 Waterberg  Upgrading of road (Gravel to tar) 

T682 Waterberg  Preventative Maintenance 

T703 Waterberg  Preventative Maintenance 

DESCRIPTION

Moletji (D3332) - Makgodi (R521)

Westenburg to Kalkspruit (D19) 

Giyani to Nkuri to Malonga (20km)

Babangu to Ndhengeza to 
Noblehoek to Maphalle
Giyani to Malamulele 

GaMasha to Mampuru to 
Tukakgomo to Makgabane 
Steelpoort to Jane Furse 

Arabie to Marble Hall (D2534) 

Arabie to Marble Hall (D2534) 

Matsakale to Altein to Shangoni 
Kruger National Park Gate 
Bandelierkop to Vuwani 

Bandelierkop to Vleifontein 

Harry Oppenheimer (N11) to 
Pudiyakgopa to Bakenberg 
Tomburke to Alldays (D887) 

Crecy to Tuinplaas (D943) 

CONTRACTOR

Unity Construction

TTR Building Construction

KPMM

Makali

PGN Civils/Golden Rewards 250 cc

David Diva Construction cc

Lonerock Construction

Lonerock Construction

Gorogang

Gorogang

Batsekgadi Community Projects

Ludonga's Construction cc

Makali

4 Arrows/Ruwacon JV

Kgatlapa

8.30 1

12.00

22.80 1

26.00

0.00 8.80

23.70

0.00 112.000

0.00 15.40 27.380

25.20

17.80

7.00

10.00

17.20

22.80 72.520

19.00

km  
UPGRADE

 LANE km 
REHAB

m2  
RESEALED BRIDGES

km  
UPGRADE

LANE km 
REHAB

m2  
RESEALED

BRIDGES km  
UPGRADE

LANE km 
REHAB

m2  
RESEALED

BRIDGES km  
UPGRADE

 LANE km 
REHAB

m2  
RESEALED

BRIDGES

TOTAL PLANNED ‘AS ON 1 April 2015 AS ON 31 MARCH 2016 TOTAL FOR 2015/2016

OUTPUT (km, m2 or No. of)

TOTAL

ANNUAL REPORT : OUTPUTS FOR 2016/2017
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8.30 1

12.00

22.80 1

26.00

0.00 8.80

23.70

0.00 112.000

0.00 15.40 27.380

25.20

17.80

7.00

10.00

17.20

22.80 72.520

19.00

6.00

22.80 1 22.80

5.00

4.80

16.00

14.400

17.8

15 17.2

10.60 59.200

1 6.00 0.00 0 1.00

15.20 48.100 0.00 15.20 48.100 0.00

2 0.00 0.00 0 1.00

5.00 0.00 0 0.00

21.00 57.456 0.00 16.20 57.456 0.00

16.00 0.00 0 0.00

112,000 0.00 0.00 97.600 0.00

19.40 26.655 0.00 19.40 26.655 0.00

24.29 0.00 24.29 0 0.00

17.80 0.00 0 0.00

7.00 0.00 7.00 0 0.00

9.52 0.00 9.52 0 0.00

2.10 0.00 0 0.00

22.80 84.360 0.00 12.20 25.160 0.00

18.70 0.00 18.70 0 0.00

km  
UPGRADE

 LANE km 
REHAB

m2  
RESEALED BRIDGES

km  
UPGRADE

LANE km 
REHAB

m2  
RESEALED

BRIDGES km  
UPGRADE

LANE km 
REHAB

m2  
RESEALED

BRIDGES km  
UPGRADE

 LANE km 
REHAB

m2  
RESEALED

BRIDGES

TOTAL PLANNED ‘AS ON 1 April 2015 AS ON 31 MARCH 2016 TOTAL FOR 2015/2016

OUTPUT (km, m2 or No. of)

TOTAL
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C
apricorn

6.00
15.20

48,100
1

M
opani

5.00
16.20

57,456
1

Sekhukhune
16.00

43.69
124,255

0

Vhem
be

17.80
16.52

0
0

W
aterberg

2.10
30.90

25,160
0

TO
TA

L :
46.90

122.51
254,971

2

46.90 122.51 254.971 2.00
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3.   REVENUE COLLECTION

2016/17
Budget Actual (Over)/Under

 Collection
Interest  3,044  5,594  2,550 

Application for Roads Access and Closure  340  412  72 

Application for Billboards  12  6  -6 

Application for Land Development  30  58  28 

Rental Billboards  682  706  24 

Tender Documents  1,371  1,428  57 

 5,479  8,204  2,725 

3.1   CAPITAL INVESTMENT

Infrastructure Projects Expenditure 2015/16 2016/17
R'000 Budget Actual (Over)/Under

 Collection
Budget Actual (Over)/Under

 Collection
Upgrading projects  455,156  441,581  13,575  231,579  342,228  -110,649 

Preventative Maintenance  470,424  369,650  100,774  414,861  190,366  224,495 

Bridges  117,109  112,773  4,336  70,154  51,234  18,920 

Total  1,042,689  924,004  118,685  716,594  583,828  132,766 
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1.  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors, with the assistance of the Company Secretary is 
reponsible for setting the right ethical tone conducive to Corporate Governance.

2.  PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES

Roads Agency Limpopo is, from time to time, expected to account to the Portfolio 
Committee on Public Works, Roads and Infrastructure regarding the delivery of 
its mandate as stipulated in RAL’s founding Act.

3.  SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Member of Executive Council responsible for the Limpopo Provincial 
Department of Public Works, Roads and Infrastructure is the sole shareholder 
of the entity, on behalf of the Limpopo Provincial Government. On an annual 
basis, a Shareholders’ Compact is concluded between the shareholder and the 
entity in terms of which key deliverables are outlined, in conformity with RAL’s 
Constitutive Act, Annual Performance Plan and Strategic Plan. The shareholder 
holds the Board of Directors accountable for the implementation of the pre-
determined strategic objectives set out in the Annual Performance Plan. In this 
regard, RAL submits Performance Reports both on a quarterly and annual basis. 
The quarterly performance reporting, as well as annual reporting requirements 
were complied with during the period under review.

4.  THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY / BOARD

The Role of the Board

Board Members shall act jointly as a collective when discharging their duties and no 
Board Member shall have any authority to severally perform any act on behalf of RAL 
unless specifically authorized or requested by the Board or authorised nominees of the 
Board. Board members shall be jointly accountable for the decisions of the Board.

Board members have a fiduciary duty to act in the best interests of RAL, to act with 
utmost care and due diligence in discharging their duties and to avoid conflict of interest 
and declare any such conflict when it arise, and to account for any advantages gained in 
discharging their duties on behalf RAL. Board Members shall act with integrity and shall 
not misuse their positions to derive personal benefits in the scope of their directorship.

The Board will base its decisions on policy, strategy, facts, analysis and not on prejudice.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 2016/17 

Names Designation
(in terms of 
the Public 
Entity Board 
structure)

Date 
Appointed

Date 
Resigned

Qualifications Area of Expertise Board 
Directorships 
(List the entities)

Other Committees or 
Task Teams
(e.g: Audit committee
/Ministerial task 
team)

No.  of  Meetings 
Attended

Mr. MS Ralebipi Chairperson of 
the Board

01/04/14 n/a 1. BCom Accounting
2. Higher Diploma in Computer 

Accounting
3. CRISC
4. Certificate in Strategic 

Leadership

•	 Finance & 
Auditing

Roads Agency 
Limpopo

Nominations 7  Board meetings
1  Nominations 

committe 
meeting

1  AGM
1  Special  General 

Meeting

Mr. XR 
Mulamula

Ex Officio 
Board member 
ito Section 12 
(3) (a) of RAL 
Act

01/04/16 n/a 1.	 NRF7 Governance and 
Administration

•	 Corporate 
Governance

Roads Agency 
Limpopo

• Planning & 
Contracts

• Social & Ethics
• Committee

6  Board meetings
2  Planning & 

contracts 
committee 
meetings

1   AGM
1  Special General 

Meeting

Adv. JR 
Bilankulu

Ex Officio 
Board member 
ito Section 12 
(3) (a) of RAL 
Act

01/10/16 n/a 1. BProc
2. LLB
3. Diploma: Legislation Drafting
4. Diploma: Drafting & Interpretation 

of Contracts

•	 Law Roads Agency 
Limpopo

• HR & 
Remunerations

• Social & Ethics

6  Board meetings
2  REMCO 

meetings
1  AGM
1  Special  General 

Meeting
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Mr. MPK 
Tshivhase

Independent 
Director

20/05/15 n/a 1. B.Luris •	 Law Roads Agency 
Limpopo

• HR & 
Remunerations

• Committee

6   Board meetings
3   REMCO 

meetings
1   AGM
1  Special General 

Meeting

Ms. WNG 
Moleko

Independent 
Director

01/04/14 n/a 1. BA Education
2. BA (Hons)
3. Master of Arts
4. PostGrad Diploma in 

Telecommunications and 
Information Policy

5. Monitoring and Evaluation 
Course

6. Technology in Distance 
Education and E-learning Course

•	 Human 
Resources

•	 Education

Roads Agency 
Limpopo

• HR& 
Remunerations

• Committee

6  Board meetings
4  REMCO 

meetings
1  AGM
1  Special General 

meeting

Ms. MH Kekana Independent 
Director

01/04/14 n/a 1. Diploma (Building Science)
2. BTech (Quality Surveying)
3. Project Management Certificate
4. Project Management: Professional 

Preparation Workshop
5. Microsoft Project Skills 

Management
6. Management Development 

Programme

•	 Quantity Survey
•	 Monitoring & 

Evaluation

Roads Agency 
Limpopo

• Contracts & 
Planning

• Committee

6  Board meetings
2  Planning & 

contracts 
committee 
meetings

1  AGM 
1  Special General 

meeting

Names Designation
(in terms of 
the Public 
Entity Board 
structure)

Date 
Appointed

Date 
Resigned

Qualifications Area of Expertise Board 
Directorships 
(List the entities)

Other Committees or 
Task Teams
(e.g: Audit committee
/Ministerial task 
team)

No.  of  Meetings 
Attended

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 2016/17 
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Mr. MP Matji CEO and Ex 
Officio Board 
Member

01/03/15 1. MBL (Corporate Strategy)
2. Msc (Engineering Science) (Civil)
3. Bsc (Hons) (Computational Fluid 

Dynamics)
4. Bsc (Applied Maths & Physics)
5. MAP
6. Diploma: Business Management
7. Pr. Nat.Sci
8. Pr.CPM

• Infrastructure 
Planning and 
Management

• Business 
Leadership & 
Management

Roads Agency 
Limpopo

7   Board meetings
8   Audit &Risk 

committee 
meetings

4   REMCO 
meetings

2   Planning 
& contracts 
committee 
meetings

1   AGM
1  Special General 

meeting

Ms. MG 
Mokoka

Independent 
Audit& Risk 
Committee 
Chairperson

20/11/15 n/a 1. BCom (Accounting)
2. BCom (Hon)
3. PostGrad Diploma in Management 

(Financial)
4. PostGrad Diploma (Auditing)

•	 Chartered 
Accountant 
specialising 
in Financial 
Management 

Roads Agency 
Limpopo

Audit & Risk
Committee

9  Audit & Risk 
committee 
meetings 

2  Board meetings
1  AGM
1  Special General 

meeting

Mr. GM 
Maluleke

Independent 
Audit & Risk 
Committee 
Member

20/11/15 n/a 1. BCompt
2. BCompt (Hons)
3. Certificate in Mining Taxation
4. Certificate in Theory Accountancy
5. Diploma in Insolvency Law and 

Practice

•	 Chartered 
Accountant 
specialising 
in Financial 
Management

Roads Agency 
Limpopo

Audit & Risk
Committee

8  Audit & Risk 
committee 
meetings

Mr. Z Samsam Independent 
Audit & Risk 
Committee 
Member

20/11/15 n/a 1. BCom
2. PostGrad Diploma in Accountancy
3. Advanced Certificate in Auditing

•	 Chartered 
Accountant 
specialising 
in Financial 
Management

Roads Agency 
Limpopo

Audit & Risk
Committee

8  Audit & Risk 
committee 
meetings

Names Designation
(in terms of 
the Public 
Entity Board 
structure)

Date 
Appointed

Date 
Resigned

Qualifications Area   of Expertise Board 
Directorships 
(List the entities)

Other Committees or 
Task Teams (e.g: Audit 
committee / Ministerial 
task team)

No.  of  Meetings 
Attended

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 2016/17 
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REMUNERATION OF THE BOARD

Names Remuneration Other Allowances Other Re-imbursements Total

Mr. MS Ralebipi 894 000.00 20 195.37 108.00 914 303.37

Ms. WNG Moleko 385 000.00 28 354.83 2 802.50 416 157.33

Ms. MH Kekana 385 000.00 8 475.61 3 988.09 397 463.70

Mr. MPK Tshivhase 385 000.00 19 744.53 216.00 404 960.53

Ms. MG Mokoka 209 000.00 10 476.27 504.00 219 980.27

Mr. Z Samsam 198 000.00 18 604.66 468.00 217 072.66

Mr. GM Maluleke 172 000.00 17 377.30 925.00 190 302.80

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Committee No. of  meetings  held No. of members Name of members

Audit and Risk 9 3 Ms M. Mokoka,,Mr G Maluleke, Mr Z Samsam

Human Resources and Remuneration 4 3 Ms WNG Moleko, Mr MPK Tshivhase, ADV JR Bilankulu 

Contracts and Planning 2 3 Ms MH Kekana, Ms WNG Moleko, Mr XR Mulamula

Nominations Committee 1 2 Mr MS Ralebipi, Ms WNG Moleko
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1. RISK MANAGEMENT

 The Board of Directors, as the authority accountable to the shareholder 
for the affairs of RAL, concerns itself with risk management.  In this 
regard, a process of Risk Management that is aligned with the principles of 
good Corporate Governance, as supported by the Public Finance Management 
Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999, as amended, is subscribed to.

 Risk Management is recognised as an integral part of responsible corporate 
citizenship, as espoused in Principle 11 of the King IV Report on Corporate 
Governance For South Africa, 2016 (“King IV Report”).  RAL has adopted 
an integrated enterprise-wide risk management approach, which entails 
identifying, evaluating and monitoring risks associated with the nature of the 
business of RAL, and employing appropriate treatment plans to mitigate the 
probability of the risks materializing.

 The position of Senior Manager: Enterprise-Wide Risk and Compliance has 
been newly created by the entity as part of its commitment to risk management, 
and the incumbent, Mr. Komane Maphutha, assumed his duties with effect 
from 1st March 2017.The features of this process are outlined in the Agency’s 
Risk Management Strategy.  All risk owners responsible for the strategic, 
operational and fraud risks are expected to employ all their endeavours to 
ensure that risks are mitigated in order to reduce the likelihood of those risks 
materializing.

 Effective Risk Management is imperative to the Agency to fulfill its mandate 
and the service delivery expectations of the public and the performance 
expectations within the Agency.

 
 The realisation of our strategic plan depends on RAL being able to take 

calculated risks in a way that does not jeopardize the direct interests of 
stakeholders. Sound management of risk will enable RAL to anticipate and 
respond to changes in our service delivery environment, as well as make 
informed decisions under conditions of uncertainty.

2. PROACTIVE ASSURANCE AND INTERNAL   
CONTROL UNIT

 Housed in the Finance unit of RAL, is the Proactive Assurance and Internal 
Control division which provides assurance, and ensures that the Auditor 
General Audit Action Plan is adhered to and that findings are resolved.  Also 
performed in the division, is the function of ensuring that in procuring goods 
and services, the procurement checklist is complied with. The unit was not 
in place in the Financial Year under review. 

 In order to meet its responsibility with respect to providing reliable financial 
information, Roads Agency Limpopo maintains financial and operational 
systems of Internal Control. These controls are designed to provide 
reasonable and reliable assurance that transactions are concluded in 
accordance with prescribed regulations, that the assets are adequately 
safeguarded against material loss of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposal and those transactions are properly authorized and recorded.

3. INTERNAL AUDIT

 RAL’s Internal Audit Unit works closely with the Proactive Assurance and 
Risk Management Units in order to ensure a combined assurance model 
that is risk-based and integrated.  The Internal Audit Unit is governed by its 
charter which is reviewed and concluded with the Audit & Risk Committee of 
the Board of Directors on an annual basis.  In addition to the Internal Audit 
Charter, the activities of the unit are set out in the 5 Year Rolling Internal Audit 
Plan, and for the Financial Year under review, an annual Internal Audit Plan 
was approved by the Audit & Risk Committee.

 Internal Audit Plan was approved by Audit and Risk Committee.Thirty-
Two (32) Internal Audit projects were planned for the 2016/2017 Financial 
Year. However, only twenty-five (25) have been finalised and seven (7) IT 
outsourced projects have not been conducted due to delays experienced in 
finalising the appointment of the consultants.
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IMPLEMENTATION

Seventy-five (75) findings were reported in the financial year 2016/2017, twenty-
seven (27) of which have been resolved during the year and forty-eight (48) are in 
progress. The implementation rate is thirty-six (36%) percent. Management has 
commenced with processes/action to resolve the reported findings.

The Internal Audit unit has performed an independent overall assessment of internal 
controls, in terms of which a statement was issued that the controls are effective albeit 
with deficiencies.

During the 2016/17 financial year the unit adhered to the Institute of Internal Auditors 
(IIA) Standards and Code of Ethics.  The unit submitted activity reports to the Audit & 
Risk Committee on a quarterly basis.

4. AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE

The Audit and Risk Committee exercised an oversight and monitoring function, 
as required by its Terms of Reference.  The Committee held its quarterly sittings for 
the purpose of considering all statutory submissions to the shareholder and to the 
Limpopo Provincial Treasury. 

5. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Crucial pieces of the Legislation that govern and regulate the Agency’s operations 
are, inter alia, the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999, the Companies Act 71 
of 2008 and the Limpopo Province Roads Agency Proprietary Limited and Provincial 
Roads Act 7 of 1998, as amended.  The regulatory framework comprises the King IV 
Code, Treasury Regulations, and the Protocol on Corporate Governance in the Public 
Sector.  RAL has the responsibility to comply with all applicable laws and regulations.

6. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

Roads Agency Limpopo has established a Fraud and Corruption hotline, which is 
a platform on which concerns relating to fraud and breaches of ethical codes can be 
reported. The Hotline is a telephonically operated tool which employees and concerned 
citizens can freely use to report any fraud and corruption activities on an anonymous 
basis. This hotline has been effective since 2011.
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Furthermore, the Agency, in its procurement processes, continues, to give 
due regard to the provisions set out in the Public Finance Management 
Act of 1999, Treasury Regulations and Framework for Supply Chain 
Management and related pieces of legislation.

The Board of Directors approved the Agency’s Fraud Prevention and 
Anti-Corruption Policy on 14th May 2016, which policy was implemented 
throughout the Financial Year being reported on.

7. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Board of Directors approved a Conflict of Interest Policy in its sitting held 
on 11th November 2015, in terms of which all employees of Roads Agency 
Limpopo are required to complete the declaration of interest forms, in which 
financial interests have to be disclosed. All declarations made by employees 
have to be submitted to the Chief Executive Officer for approval.

8. CODE OF CONDUCT

RAL operates on a solid policy platform that covers all areas of the agency. 
The Board pays particular attention to the effectiveness and relevance of 
policies, considering all policies before implementation, including ensuring 
that management complies with relevant laws and regulations.

9. HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The Agency ensures that all the projects that are implemented comply 
with all the statutory requirements of Environmental Management, 
Health & Safety regulations. This is done by ensuring that all projects have 
environmental authorizations and permits from stakeholder departments. In 
addition, we also ensure that there is compliance monitoring for appointed 
contractors to meet the Safety, Health and Environmental Management 
obligations.

The major challenge during execution of projects is the land ownership 
disputes in the borrow pits areas and this is addressed by strictly adhering to 
the provisions of the law and intensive stakeholder engagement processes 
with the Social and Institutional Development (S.I.D) unit at RAL. The 
process of stakeholder engagement ensures that information dissemination 
on projects is done throughout the project cycle in order to create awareness 
within communities and amongst project participants.

10. COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms T.C. Kekana is the appointed Company Secretary of Roads Agency 
Limpopo. 

11. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 
The Agency offers bursaries to disadvantaged students pursuing Civil 
Engineering and Construction - related qualifications and Learnership 
Programme. Upon completion of their studies, bursary holders are offered 
an opportunity for experiential training. Where possible the Agency has 
been able to absorb some graduates who were part of the learnership 
programme and who have successfully completed their studies.

12. AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit and Risk Committee is pleased to present its report for 
the financial year ended 31 March 2017. The committee has adopted 
appropriate formal terms of reference as outlined in the Audit Committee 
Charter. The Committee has discharged its fiduciary duties in conformity 
with this charter and has executed all its delegated responsibilities as 
contained therein namely:

•	 Reviewing the internal control structure, including financial controls 
and accounting systems, as well as evaluating whether the system of 
internal control is adequate to manage critical risks;
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•	 Reviewing the internal audit function, including its written charter, 
objectives, goals and staffing plans, as well as evaluating whether the 
function is performed satisfactorily;

•	 Evaluating whether management demonstrates and stimulates the 
necessary respect for the internal control structures;

•	 Overseeing and managing the total internal audit function to ensure that:
-	 the internal audit performance goals are achieved;
-	 risks are identified;
-	 specific issues requiring attention are highlighted; 

Audit Committee Members:

 The Audit Committee consisted of the independent members listed 
hereunder. The Committee convened 9 meetings during the 2016/17 
financial year. The Audit Charter requires that the committee meets at least 
2 times per annum.  The three independent committee members were 
appointed on 12th November 2015.

Name of member Number of meetings 
attended

Ms. M.G. Mokoka
Independent Chairperson: Audit & Risk Committee 9

Mr. G.M. Maluleke
Independent Audit & Risk Committee Member 8

Mr. Z. Samsam
Independent Audit & Risk Committee Member   8

Audit & Risk Committee Responsibility
 
The Audit and Risk Committee reports to have adopted appropriate formal terms of 
reference in our charter in conformity with the provisions of Principle 8, Recommended 
Practice 51-59 of the King IV Code of Corporate Governance and section 94 of the 
Companies Act 71 of 2008.

The Committee exercised oversight over the effectiveness of the internal controls, 
assurance functions, as well as the integrity of the Annual Financial Statements and 
Annual Performance Report.

Furthermore, the Committee monitored the governance of financial, operational and 
strategic risks of RAL. 

Audit and Risk Committee ensures that Internal Audit Unit performs its responsibility 
by:

•	 Reviewing competence and qualifications of the Internal Audit Function, including 
reviewing and concurring with appointment and dismissal of the Internal Audit 
service provider;

•	 Reviewing the plans and budgets of the Internal Audit Function. Ensure that the 
plan addresses the high risk areas and that adequate resources are available;

•	 Reviewing audit results and action plans of management;
•	 Reviewing the effectiveness of the Internal Audit Function;
•	 Ensuring that Internal Audit work is coordinated with External Audit to ensure little 

or no duplication of work and coverage;
•	 Receiving and reviewing quarterly progress reports submitted by the internal audit 

function;
•	 Reviewing the Annual Risk Assessment process and prioritisation of major risks 

identified.
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Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements

We have: 

•	 Reviewed and discussed the annual Financial Statements to be included in the annual report, with the Auditor-General and the Internal Auditors;
•	 Reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa’s management letter and management’s response thereto;
•	 Reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices;
•	 Reviewed the International Marketing Council compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;
•	 Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

Auditor General of South Africa

We have met with the Auditor General of South Africa to ensure that there are no unresolved issues.

..............................................................
Ms. M.G. Mokoka CA(SA)
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee
Roads Agency Limpopo
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1. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS

Personnel Cost by programme/ activity/ objective

Programme/
activity/ 
objective

Total Expenditure 
for the entity 
(R’000)

Personnel 
Expenditure 
(R’000)

Personnel exp. as a % of 
total exp. (R’000) No. of employees

Average personnel 
cost per employee 
(R’000)

Engineering 29 383 48.29 46 638

Corporate Services
7 813

12.84
20 390

Finance 11 276 18.53 19 539

Information Technology 3 635 5.97 06 605

CEO’s Office 8 744 11.37 11 494

Total 60 851 100 102 596
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Personnel cost by Salary Band

Level Personnel Expenditure 
(R’000)

% of personnel exp. to total personnel 
cost (R’000) No. of employees Average personnel cost per 

employee (R’000)

Top Management 6 102 10.03 5 1 220

Senior Management 8 157 13.40 8 1 019
Professional qualified 24 357 40.03 24 1 014

Skilled 14 524 23.87 24 605

Semi-skilled 5 656 9.29 22 257

Unskilled 2 055 3.38 19 108

Total 60 851 100 102 596

Performance Rewards

Programme//activity/objective Performance rewards Personnel Expenditure (R’000) % of performance rewards to total 
personnel cost (R’000)

Top Management 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0

Professional qualified 0 0 0

Skilled 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0
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Training Costs

Programme//activity/ 
objective

Personnel Expenditure 
(R’000)

Training 
Expenditure 
(R’000)

Training Expenditure as a 
% of Personnel Cost.

No. of employees trained Avg training cost per 
employee

Training and Courses 67 589 466 0.90 56 8.32

Employment and Vacancies

Programme/activity/objective
2015/2016
No. of Employees

2016/2017 Approved 
Posts

2016/2017
No. of Employees

2016/2017 Vacancies % of vacancies

Employment and Vacancies 82 145 97 48 41.96

Programme/activity/objective 2015/16 
No. of Employees

2016/17
Approved Posts

2016/17
No. of Employees

2016/2017 
Vacancies

% of vacancies

Top Management 2 7 3 5 57

Senior Management 4 9 5 4 44

Professional qualified 24 52 26 26 50

Skilled 19 31 22 9 29

Semi-skilled 29 26 21 5 19

Unskilled 4 20 20 0 0

Total 82 145 97 49 33



63| Roads Agency Limpopo  | 2016 / 2017 Annual Report |

Employment and Vacancies

Salary Band Employment at 
beginning of period Appointments Terminations 2016/17 Vacancies Employment at end of the 

period

Top Management 3 2 0 5 5

Senior Management 6 2 1 4 8

Professional qualified 25 0 3 26 25

Skilled 22 2 0 9 24

Semi-skilled 19 3 1 5 22

Unskilled 19 0 10 0 19

Total 94 9 15 49 103

Employment Changes

Reason Number % of total no. of staff leaving

Death 1 6%
Resignation 0 0%
Dismissal 2 12%
Retirement 4 24%
Ill health 0 0%
Expiry of contract 10 59%
Other 0 0%
Total 17 100%
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Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

Nature of Disciplinary Action Number

Verbal Warning 0

Written Warning 1

Final Written warning 0

Dismissal 2

2. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

Equity Targets and Employment Equity Status

MALE

Levels African Coloured Indian White
Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 1

Senior Management 5 3 0 0 0 0 1 0

Professional qualified 14 15 0 1 1 1 1 1

Skilled 4 6 0 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 11 14 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 37 42 0 1 1 1 2 2
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Levels
Disabled Staff

Male Female
Current Target Current Target

Top Management 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 0 0 0 0

Skilled 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0

* The Agency has met its employment equity targets in terms of representation of women in top and senior management. The Agency intends to continue to satisfy its employment 

equity needs in the 2017/18 financial year. The Agency has appointed a female Executive Manager: Corporate Services and a female Chief Financial Officer (CFO) during the 

financial year 2015/16 and 2016/17, respectively. This is an indication of new leadership addressing the employment equity at top and senior management level. Other key critical 

positions are at evaluation stage by the Human Resources Unit. The target for people with disability will be addressed in the 2018/19 employment equity targets.

Levels

FEMALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE
Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Senior Management 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 8 9 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled 11 14 0 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 10 13 2 2 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 6 4 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 48 43 2 2 0 0 0 1
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Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd
(Registration Number 2001/025832/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL

The Board of Directors is required by the Public Finance Management Act 1 
of 1999, as amended (PFMA), to maintain adequate accounting records and 
is responsible for the preparation and integrity of the audited annual financial 
statements and related financial information included in this Annual Report. 
It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to ensure that Audited Annual 
Financial Statements fairly represent the state of affairs of Roads Agency 
Limpopo (SOC) Ltd as at the end of the Financial Year and the results of its 
operations and cash flows for the period ended.

These Financial Statements have been prepared using appropriate accounting 
policies, supported by reasonable and prudent judgment and estimate, in 
conformity, in all material respects with the South African Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP).

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system 
of internal controls established by the entity and place considerable importance 
on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet 
these responsibilities, the Board sets standards of the Internal Control aimed 
at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards 
include the proper delegation of authority within a clearly defined framework, 
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure acceptable 

levels of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the entity and employees are 
required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s business is 
conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus 
of Risk Management in the entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring 
all known risk across the entity. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the entity 
endeavours to maintain it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, control, systems and 
ethical behaviours applied and managed within predetermine procedures and constraints.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the Financial Statements fairly represent the 
financial position of Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd. The Auditor General South Africa, 
who are the independent auditors of Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd, are engaged 
to express an opinion on the Annual Financial Statements and were given unrestricted 
access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of the Board of Directors, 
the Committees of the Board and the management of the Roads.

Road Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd. and the Board of Directors have no reason to believe 
that all representations made to the independent auditors during the audit are not valid 
and appropriate. The Board of Directors further accepts responsibility for the maintenance 
of accounting records which may be relied upon in the preparation of the Financial 
Statements, as well as adequate systems of the Internal Financial Control.
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Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd
(Registration Number 2001/025832/07)

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL

Nothing has come to the attention of the Board of Directors to suggest that the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd will not remain a going concern for at least the 
following twelve months.

The Annual Financial Statements of Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd which appear on pages 81 to 134 were approved by the Board of Directors and are signed on 

their behalf by:

…………………………… ………………………………
Mr. M.S. Ralebipi  
Chairperson: Board of Directors  
31 May 2017

Ms. M.G. Mokoka CA (SA) 
Chairperson: Audit & Risk Committee 

31 May 2017

Mr. M.P. Matji Pr.CPM 
Chief Executive Officer 
31 May 2017

………………………………
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Report of the auditor-general to Limpopo 
Provincial Legislature on Roads Agency 
Limpopo SOC Ltd

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. I have audited the Fnancial Statements of the Roads Agency 

Limpopo SOC Ltd set out on pages 81 to 134 which comprise 

the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, the 

Statement of Financial performance, statement of changes in net 

assets, statement of cash flows and the statement of comparison 

of budget information with actual information for the year then 

ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, including 

a summary of significant accounting policies. 

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all 

material respects, the financial position of the entity as at 

31 March 2017, and its financial performance and cash flows for 

the year then ended in accordance with South African Generally 

Accepted Accounting Practise (SA Standards of GRAP), the 

Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 

1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 

(Act No. 71 of 2008) (Companies Act).  

Basis for opinion

3. I have conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing 

(ISAs). My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor 

general’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements section of my 

report. 

4. I am independent of the Legislature in accordance with the International Ethics 

Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants 

(IESBA code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in 

South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the IESBA code.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for my audit opinion.
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Emphasis of matters 

6. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect 

of these matters.

Significant uncertainties

7. With reference to note 28 to the financial statements, the entity is the 

defendant in several legal claims. The entity is opposing the claim as it 

believes the claim to be fraudulent.. The ultimate outcome of the matter 

cannot presently be determined and no provision for any liability that may 

result has been made in the Financial Statements.

Restatement of corresponding figures

8. As disclosed in note 31 to the Financial Statements, the corresponding 

figures for 31 March 2016 have been restated as a result of an error in the 

Financial Statements of the entity’s Financial Statements at, and for the 

year ended 31 March 2017.

Material impairments

9. As disclosed in note 21 to the Financial Statements, material losses to the 

amount of R156 000 000 (2016: R109 000 000) were incurred as a result 

of an impairment provision for property, plant and equipment.

Irregular expenditure

10. As disclosed in note 35 to the Financial Statements, irregular expenditure 

to the amount of R1 655 737 000 was incurred, as a proper tender process 

had not been followed.

Other matter 

11. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect 

of this matter

Unaudited supplementary schedules

12. The supplementary information set out on pages 1 to 63 does not form part 

of the Financial Statements and is presented as additional information. I 

have not audited these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an 

opinion thereon.

Responsibilities of the accounting authority for the 
Financial Statements 

13. The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation and fair 

presentation of the Financial Statements in accordance with SA Standards 

of GRAP, the PFMA and the Companies Act, and for such internal control as 

the Accounting Authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation 

of Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error.

14. In preparing the Financial Statements, the Accounting Authority is 

responsible for assessing the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention to liquidate 

the entity or cease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to do 

so. 
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Auditor General’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements

15. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 

my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it is 

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International 

Standards on Auditing (ISAs) will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably 

be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 

basis of these Financial Statements. 

16. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the Financial 

Statements is included in the annexure to the Auditor’s Report.

Report on the Audit of the Annual Performance Report

Introduction and scope

17. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 

25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have 

a responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance 

information against predetermined objectives for selected programmes 

presented in the Annual Performance Report. I have performed procedures 

to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

18. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based 

on the entity’s approved performance planning documents. I have not evaluated the 

completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators included in the 

planning documents. My procedures did not extend to any disclosures or assertions 

relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods 

that may be included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, 

my findings do not extend to these matters. 

19. I have evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information 

in accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and 

reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected 

programme presented in the Annual Performance Report of the entity for the year 

ended 31 March 2017:

Programmes Pages in the Annual Performance Report

Programme 2 – roads infrastructure 36 – 39

20. I have performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance 

information was properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the 

approved performance planning documents. I have performed further procedures to 

determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, 

and assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine 

whether it was valid, accurate and complete.
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21. The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the 

selected programme  are as follows:

Programme 2 – Roads Infrastructure 

 
Indicator: Developing of project designs –  
2017-18 Financial Year

22. The reported achievement for target 22 was misstated as the evidence 

provided indicated 11 and not 22 as reported.

 
Indicator – Amount spent on employing labour

23. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported 

achievement of target R23 697 000. This was due to limitations placed on 

the scope of my work. I was unable to confirm the reported achievement by 

alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any 

adjustments were required to the reported achievement of R23 697 000.

 
Indicator – Number of FTE (full time equivalent) jobs

24. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported 

achievement of target 1 747. This was due to limitations placed on the 

scope of my work. I was unable to confirm the reported achievement by 

alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any 

adjustments were required to the reported achievement of 1 747.

Indicator – Amount paid to SMME’s contractors and 
sub-contractors

25. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported 

achievement of target R155 million. This was due to limitations placed on 

the scope of my work. I was unable to confirm the reported achievement by 

alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any 

adjustments were required to the reported achievement of R155 million.

Other matters

26. I draw attention to the matters below. Our opinion is not modified in 

respect of these matters.

Achievement of planned targets

27. Refer to the Annual Performance Report on pages 25 to 44 for information 

on the achievement of planned targets for the year and explanations 

provided for the under/overachievement of a significant number of 

targets. This information should be considered in the context of material 

findings raised on usefulness and reliability of the reported information in 

paragraphs 22; 23; 24, 25 of this report.
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Report on the Audit of Compliance with Legislation

Introduction and scope

28. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, 

I have a responsibility to report material findings on the entity’s compliance 

with specific matters in key legislation. I have performed procedures to 

identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance. 

29. The material findings in respect of the compliance criteria for the applicable 

subject matters are as follows:

Annual Financial statements, Performance and Annual 
Reports

30. The Financial Statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in 

accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework and/or 

supported by full and proper records as required by section 55(1)(a) and 

(b) of the PFMA and section 29(1)(a) of the Companies Act (registered 

companies). 

 Material misstatements of non-current assets and disclosure items identified 

by the auditors in the submitted financial statement were corrected and the 

supporting records were provided subsequently, resulting in the Financial 

Statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Expenditure Management

31. Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure, as required 

by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA .

Asset Management

32. Proper control systems to safeguard and maintain assets were not implemented, as 

required by sections 50(1)(a) and 51(1)(c) of the PFMA.

Procurement and Contract Management

33. Goods and services of a transaction value above R500 000 were procured without 

inviting competitive bids, as required by Treasury regulation 16A6.1. 

34. Deviations were approved by the accounting authority even though it was not 

impractical to invite competitive bids, in contravention of Treasury regulation 16A6.4.

35. Bid adjudication was not always done by a committee which was composed 

in accordance with the policies of the entity, as required by treasury regulation 

16A6.2(a), (b) and (c).

Other Information

36. The entity’s Accounting Authority is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, which includes 

the Director’s report, the Audit Committee’s Report and the Company Secretary’s 

Certificate, as required by the Companies Act. The other information does not 

include the Financial Statements, the Auditor’s Report thereon and those selected 

programmes presented in the Annual Performance Report that have been specifically 

reported on in the Auditor’s Report. 

37. My opinion on the Financial Statements and findings on the reported performance 

information and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and I 

do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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38. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the Financial Statements and the selected programmes 

presented in the Annual Performance Report or my knowledge obtained in 

the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 

work I have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date 

of this Auditor’s Report, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information, I am required to report that fact.

Internal Control Deficiencies

39. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the Financial 

Statements, reported performance information and compliance with 

applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any 

form of assurance thereon. The matters reported below are limited to 

the significant Internal Control deficiencies that resulted to the findings 

on the Annual Performance Report and the findings on compliance with 

Legislation included in this report.

Leadership

40. Management did not adequately review the monthly reports and the 

Financial Statements and the Annual Performance Report before 

submitting them for auditing.

41. The entity developed a plan to address internal and external audit findings, 

but the appropriate level of management did not monitor adherence to the 

plan in a timely manner.

42. Leadership did not always take prompt and adequate actions to address 

weaknesses in Internal Control, which resulted in non-compliance with 

applicable legislation and gave rise to irregular expenditure.

Financial and Performance Management

43. Management did not implement monthly controls designed for the 

department’s business processes.

44. Non-compliance with legislation could have been prevented had 

compliance been properly reviewed and monitored.

45. Effective performance processes and procedures, and the management 

thereof, had not been adequately developed and implemented because 

of the slow response to previous year audit findings.

Polokwane

31 July 2017
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ROAD AGENCY 
LIMPOPO (SOC) LTD HAS PLEASURE IN PRESENTING THE 
ANNUAL REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE ENTITY FOR 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016.

REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

1. MAIN ACTIVITIES AND OPERATIONS

The Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd was established, in terms of the 

Limpopo Province Roads Agency Proprietary Limited and Provincial 

Roads Act 7 of 1998, as amended, for the purpose of constructing, 

maintaining and rehabilitating the Provincial road infrastructure, on behalf 

of the Limpopo Provincial Government. The entity is a State-Owned 

Company registered as such in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, 

and is listed as a Provincial Public Entity in schedule 3C of the Public 

Finance Management Act 1 of 1999, as amended.

The Member of Executive Council responsible for Public Works, Roads 

and Infrastructure, Hon. A.J.D. Ndou, is the Executive Authority of the 

Agency. The Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd is receive its revenue 

from the Department of Public Works, Roads and Infrastructure.

During the Financial Year being reported on, RAL managed to raise an 

amount of R310 million in additional funding from strategic partnerships 

forged with private and public sector partners for the purpose of 

implementing road infrastructure projects.

2. GOING CONCERN

The Audited Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis of that 

the Agency will continue to operate the business as a going concern. The Board of 

Directors is of the opinion that the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd. has adequate 

resources to continue with operations in the next Financial Year and that the realisation 

of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will 

occur in the ordinary course of business.

3. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the 

end of the Financial Year to the date of this report that requires further disclosure in 

the Annual Financial Statements.

4. DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

There were no material contracts in which the directors have an interest which were 

concluded and entered into during the financial period under review.

5. GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE

5.1. General

The Board of Directors retains full control of the Strategic Planning and direction of the 

Agency and acknowledges its responsibilities as to strategy, compliance with internal 

policies, external laws and regulations, effective Risk Management, Performance 

Monitoring and Evaluation, transparency and effective communication both internally 

and externally. The Board of Directors is a unitary structure comprising of seven (7) 

Board Members, four (4) of whom are independent non-executive Board Members, 

and three (3) ex officio Board Members, being the Chief Executive Officer, the Board 
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Member nominated to represent the Limpopo Provincial Treasury, as well 

as the Board Member nominated to represent the Limpopo Department of 

Public Works, Roads and Infrastructure in their official capacities. 

The Board of Directors is committed to applying all codified and customary 

Corporate Governance imperatives, as well as mandatory provisions of 

statutes, in order to ensure its responsible corporate citizenship.

In addition to the establishing statute of RAL, the shareholder concluded, 

as it does on an annual basis, a Shareholders’ Compact with the Agency, 

outlining all the deliverables expected to be achieved by the Agency for 

the year under review.  Furthermore, RAL executed all its pre-determined 

strategic objectives, as enshrined in the Five Year Strategic Plan and 

Annual Performance Plan.

5.2. Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors held quarterly meetings, as required for the purpose 

of considering and approving statutory quarterly submissions, and executed 

its collective fiduciary duties, in line with the PFMA, Companies Act and 

the establishing Act of RAL. The Board of Directors, under the leadership 

of the Chairperson, created a conducive environment for maintaining 

and exercising continuous oversight of organisational effectiveness and 

efficiency and Board performance and effectiveness. The Chairperson is an 

independent non-executive director, and the roles of the Chairperson and 

the Chief Executive Officer are separate.  The Board performs its functions 

jointly, as a collective, and no single individual Director has absolute and 

unfettered powers of discretion. 

The Chief Executive Officer managed the business operations of the 

Agency on a day-to-day basis, and ensured that the strategy and Annual 

Performance Plan approved by the Board were executed optimally.

5.3. Audit and Risk Committee

During the financial period under review, the Audit and Risk Committee 

was constituted, at all material times, by three independent non—

executive members who are Chartered Accountants.  The Committee held 

9 meetings during the financial period under review for the purpose of 

conducting its ordinary business and for any other functions expected to 

be performed within the scope of the Committee.

6. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND 
PROCEDURES

To meet its responsibility with respect to providing reliable financial 

information, the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd maintains effective 

and efficient financial and operational internal control systems. These 

controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions 

are concluded in accordance with the prescribed laws and regulations 

and in conformity with the mandate of the shareholder.  The controls 

also ensure that the assets are adequately safeguarded against material 

loss, damage or unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposal and those 

transactions are properly authorised and recorded. The Audit and Risk 

Committee, and the Board held all their scheduled meetings for the year. 

All documents that were tabled for approval have been so approved by 

the Board of Directors and implemented by the management team. No 

material deficiencies in the internal controls over financial reporting were 

identified by the Internal Audit unit.
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7. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Audit and Risk Committee, on behalf of the Board, ensured that 

integrated Risk Management was upheld and that the risk appetite of the 

Agency is managed by addressing all imminent root causes and putting in 

place effective treatment plans for the mitigation of risks.

8. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND LEGAL 
PROCEEDINGS

All commitments of the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd are reflected in 

the statement of financial position. 

The Agency had several pending legal proceedings during the year under 

review that remain sub judice.

9. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL AND IRREGULAR 
EXPENDITURE

Details of all transactions that were tantamount to fruitless and wasteful 

expenditure, as well as those that compounded irregular expenditure are 

set out in the notes to the Financial Statements.

10. DIRECTORS

The directors of the entity during the year and to the date of this report are 

as follows:

• Mr. M.S. Ralebipi – Chairperson of the Board of Directors

• Ms. W.N.G. Moleko – Independent Non-Executive Director

• Ms. M.H. Kekana – Independent Non-Executive Director

• Mr. M.P.K. Tshivhase – Independent Non-Executive Director

• Adv. J.R. Bilankulu – Ex Officio Director representing the erstwhile Department of 

Roads and Transport (appointed on 1 October 2016)

• Mr. X.R. Mulamula – Ex Officio Director representing the Limpopo Provincial 

Treasury (appointed on 1 April 2016)

11. COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tebogo C. Kekana was the Company Secretary of RAL during the year under 

review.

12. HUMAN RESOURCES

The Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd maintains a positive ethical work climate 

that is conducive to attracting, retaining and motivating a diverse group of quality 

employees at all levels of operations to encourage team spirit and personal 

commitment. Some of the key vacant positions that were filled during the period 

under review include: 

• Chief Financial Officer 

• General Manager: Operations 

• General Manager: Planning and Design
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Certificate of the Company Secretary

In terms of section 88(2)(c) of the Companies Act no 71 of 2008 (as amended), I, T.C. Kekana, in my capacity as a Company Secretary, 

confirm that for the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company has lodged with the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission, all such 

returns as are required of a public company in terms of the Companies Act and that all such returns and notices are true, correct and up to 

date.

_____________________ 

Ms. T.C. Kekana 

Company Secretary 

31 July 2017
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2017
Figures in Rand thousand Note(s) 2017 2016 Restated

Current Assets 
Inventories 6 600 435
Receivables from exchange transactions 7 24 797 2 180

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 8 - 7 616

Cash and cash equivalents 9 1 478 146 287
26 875 156 518

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

3 22 271 704 23 653 166
Intangible assets 4 116 40

Other receivables 5 2 760 2 530
22 274 580 23 655 736

Total Assets 22 301 455 23 812 254
Liabilities

Current Liabilities 
Finance lease obligation 11 313 -

Payables from exchange transactions 12 298 772 67 069

Payables from non-exchange transactions 13 4 578 153 902
303 663 220 971

Non-Current Liabilities  
 
Finance lease obligation 11 569 -

Total Liabilities 304 232 220 971
Net Assets 21 997 223 23 591 283
Share capital / contributed capital 10 1 1
Accumulated surplus 21 997 225 23 591 283
Total Net Assets 21 997 226 23 591 284
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Statement of Financial Performance
Figures in Rand thousand Note(s) 2017 2016 Restated
Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions
Other income 15 1 951 2 611
Interest income 16 3 656 5 594
Total revenue from exchange transactions 5 607 8 205
Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Government grants & subsidies 17 1 047 319 690 307

Private sector contributions 18 60 157 -

Transfers of roads by other entities 19 349 936 63 436

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 1 457 412 753 743

Total revenue 14 1 463 019 761 948

Expenditure
Employee related costs

20 (67 577) (54 236)
Infrastructure Write offs (259 097) (32 040)

Depreciation and amortization (2 244 613) (1 937 379)

Impairment loss 21 (156 977) (109 444)

Finance costs 22 (48) (8)

Provision for bad debts 23 84 (288)

Repairs and maintenance (518) (499)

Project expenses 37 (241 163) (30 041)
General Expenses 24 (81 562) (44 483)
Total expenditure (3 051 471) (2 208 418)

Operating deficit (1 588 452) (1 446 470)

Deficit for the year (1 588 452) (1 446 470)
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Figures in Rand thousand
Accumulated 

surplus
Total net 
assets

Opening balance as previously reported 
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments

28 569 228

(3 405 843)

28 569 228

(3 405 843)

Balance at 01 April 2015 as restated*
Changes in net assets 
Deficit for the year

25 163 385

(1 446 470)

25 163 385

(1 446 470)
Transfer of unspent funds (118 685) (118 685)

Transfer of own revenue (6 947) (6 947)

Total changes (1 572 102) (1 572 102)
Balance at 01 April 2016 
Changes in net assets 
Transfer of own revenue

23 591 284

(5 607)

23 591 284

(5 607)
Net income (losses) recognized directly in net assets (5 607) (5 607)

Deficit for the year (1 588 452) (1 588 452)

Total recognized income and expenses for the year (1 594 059) (1 594 059)

Total changes (1 594 059) (1 594 059)

Balance at 31 March 2017 21 997 225 21 997 225
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Cash Flow Statement
Figures in Rand thousand Note(s) 2017 2016 Restated
Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Grants 1 054 935 836 594

Interest income 4 558 5 078

Other receipts 2 001 2 270

1 061 494 843 942

Payments

Employee costs (66 916) (55 032)

Suppliers (81 551) (47 003)

Finance costs (48) (8)

Other payments (243 261) (150 370)

(391 776) (252 413)

Net cash flows from operating activities 26 669 718 591 529

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (792 290) (563 617)

Purchase of other intangible assets 4 (140) -

Deposit paid on borrow pit (230) (310)

Payments of behalf of other department (21 737) -

Net cash flows from investing activities (814 397) (563 927)

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance lease payments (130) -

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (144 809) 27 602
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 146 287 118 685
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 1 478 146 287
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis

Figures in Rand thousand Approved 
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual Amounts 
on comparable 

basis

Difference 
between final 

budget and actual

Reference

Statement of Financial Performance Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Interest received 2 500 2 540 5 040 3 656 (1 384) #1

Other income 27 044 (25 886) 1 158 1 951 793 #2
Total revenue from exchange transactions 29 544 (23 346) 6 198 5 607 (591)

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 737 330 309 989 1 047 319 1 047 319 -
Private sector contributions - - - 60 157 60 157
Transfers of roads by other entities - - - 349 936 349 936

Total revenue from non- exchange 
transactions

737 330 309 989 1 047 319 1 457 412 410 093

Total revenue 766 874 286 643 1 053 517 1 463 019 409 502
Expenditure
Personnel 112 703 (42 383)

 
70 320 67 577

 
(2 743) #3

Infrastructure write off - - - 259 097 259 097
Depreciation - - - 2 244 613 2 244 613
Impairment loss/ Reversal of impairments
Finance costs

-

-

-

12

-

12

156 977

48

156 977

36 #4
Bad debts - - - (84) (84)
Repairs and maintenance 734 (60) 674 518 (156) #5
Project expenses 569 330 387 351 956 681 1 107 708 151 027 #6

General Expenses 53 928 28 320 82 248 81 562 (686) #7
Total expenditure 736 695 373 240 1 109 935 3 918 016 2 808 081
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 30 179 (86 597) (56 418) 376 166 432 584
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
 
Comment and variance analysis

#1 : Reduced cash held in the bank, which resulted to a lower interest income.
#2 : Application fees for access roads, rental of billboards and sale of tender documents were higher than estimated.
#3 : Delays in recruitment process which resulted in under spending of employee cost.
#4 : New lease contract for printing machines met the criteria to be classified as finance lease resulting in finance cost not budgeted for, since 

the contract was budgeted as operating lease.
#5 : Building maintenance exceeded expected cost due to poor water supply from municipality and heavy rains.
#6:  The actual expenditure includes projects expenditure capitalized for proper comparison. Some of the multi-year projects performed at           

faster rate than budgeted.
#7: Surplus under general expenses was mainly due to increase in budget for consulting and professional fees during mid- year budget 

adjustment to accommodate higher variance by mid-year.
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1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

 The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognized Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the 

Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

 These Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost convention as the basis 

of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

 A summary of the significant Accounting Policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these Annual Financial Statements, are 

disclosed below.

 These Accounting Policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 Presentation currency
 

These Annual Financial Statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the entity.

1.2 Going concern assumption
 

These Annual Financial Statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the 

next 12 months.

1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
 

In preparing the Annual Financial Statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts represented in the 

Annual Financial Statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. 

Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the Annual Financial Statements. Significant judgements include:

 Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock

 

An allowance for stock to write stock down to the lower of cost or net realizable value. Management have made estimates of the selling price and direct cost 

to sell on certain inventory items. The write down is included under expenses in the Statement of Financial Performance.
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Fair value estimation
 

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of 

financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is 

available to the entity for similar financial instruments.

 

Provisions

The amount recognized as a provision is the present value of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at balance sheet 

date.

Useful lives of waste and water network and other assets

The entity’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for the waste water and water networks. This 

estimate is based on industry norm. Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated useful 

lives.

 
Allowance for doubtful debts

On debtors an impairment loss is recognized in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The impairment is measured 

as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest 

rate, computed at initial recognition.
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1.4 Property, Plant and Equipment
 
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period.
 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset when:
It is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. 
 
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
 
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.
 
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and 
non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was not determinable, its deemed 
cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
 
When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major 
components) of property, plant and equipment.
 
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace 
part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognized in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognized. 

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included in the cost of property, 
plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for 
purposes other than the production of inventories.
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Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
 
Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognized when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. 

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the recognition criteria 
above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from the previous 
inspection are derecognized. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The useful lives of items of property, plant 
and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life

Land Straight line Infinite

Buildings Straight line 50 years

Furniture and fixtures Straight line 12 years

Motor vehicles Straight line 10 years

Office equipment Straight line 8 years

IT equipment Straight line 5 to 6  years

Roads Beds Straight line 40 years

Pavement Layers Straight line 20 years

Bridges Straight line 50 years

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. If the expectations differ from 
previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

Po
lic

ie
s



91| Roads Agency Limpopo  | 2016 / 2017 Annual Report |

1.4 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless expectations differ from the 
previous estimate.
 
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.
 
The depreciation charge for each period is recognized in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
 
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognized when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or service potential 
expected from the use of the asset.
 
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. 
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 

1.5 Intangible Assets
 
An asset is identifiable if it is either:

a separable, i.e. It is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or 
together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of whether the entity intends to do so; or
arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are transferable or separable from the entity or 
from other rights and obligations.

 
A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in the form of a contract.
An intangible asset is recognized when:

it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and
the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
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The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent 
management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the useful life of the asset.
 
Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured at its fair value as at that date.

 
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognized when: it is technically feasible to 
complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
there is an intention to complete and use or sell it. there is an ability to use or sell it.
it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential.
there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset.
the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortization and any impairment losses.

 
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the 
asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortization is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment 
annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortization is provided on a straight line basis 
over their useful life.
 
The amortization period and the amortization method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
 
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As 
a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortized over its useful life.
 
Amortization is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item Useful life
Computer software 3 years
Website design 3 years
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1.6 Financial Instruments
 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual interest of another entity.
 
The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition 
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount 
and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.
 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.
 
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
 
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognized financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of financial position.
 
A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:

Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of 
prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party 
to the contract (sometimes called the ‘underlying’).
It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of contracts that would be 
expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors.
It is settled at a future date.

 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of financial assets or 
financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all 
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation 
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see the Standard of 
GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows 
and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably 
estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over 
the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).
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Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
 
A financial asset is:

cash;
a residual interest of another entity; or a contractual right to:

-	 receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
-	 exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable to the entity.

 
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor 
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

 
A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to: deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the entity.

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
 
Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or 
another financial asset.
 
Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term 
payables on normal credit terms.
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three 
types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
 
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising 
from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all 
similar financial instruments traded in the market.
 
A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

 

1.6 Financial Instruments (Continued)
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A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. A residual interest includes 
contributions from owners, which may be shown as:

equity instruments or similar forms of unitized capital;
a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as forming part of an entity’s net 
assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution; or
a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the net assets of an entity.

 
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability. An 
incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument.
 
Financial instruments at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed or determinable payments, 
excluding those instruments that:

the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or are held for trading.
 
Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market, and whose fair value cannot 
be reliably measured. 

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:  
 derivatives;
 combined instruments that are designated at fair value;

instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if:
-	 it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or
-	 on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a 

recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking;
-	 non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at fair value at initial 

recognition; and
-	 financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortized cost or financial instruments at cost

1.6 Financial Instruments (Continued)
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1.7 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does 
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
 
When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.

Finance leases - lessee 

Finance leases are recognized as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the 
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. 

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease. 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during 
the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability.
 
Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

 
Operating leases - lessee
 
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the amounts recognized as an expense 
and the contractual payments are recognized as an operating lease asset or liability. 

1.8 Inventories
 
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their costs are their fair value as at the 
date of acquisition.
 
Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
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Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;  
  distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or

 consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.
 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.
 
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition.
 
When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognized as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized. 
If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognized when the goods are distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down 
of inventories to net realizable value or current replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognized as an expense in the period the write-down or 
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realizable value or current replacement cost, are 
recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

1.9 Impairment of Cash Generating Assets

Cash generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates a commercial return when it is 
deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future 
economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortization).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognized in the statement of financial position after deducting any accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return that generates cash inflows 
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

1.8 Inventories (Continued)
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Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortization) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of 
disposal.

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Useful life is either:

(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or

(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity.

Criteria developed by the entity to distinguish cash-generating assets from non-cash-generating assets are as follow:

1.10 Impairment of Non Cash Generating Assets
 
Cash generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates a commercial return when it is deployed in a 
manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity.

Non cash generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic 
benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortization).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognized in the Statement of Financial Position after deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return that generates cash inflows from 
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortization) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
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Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the 
costs of disposal.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Useful life is either:

(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or

(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity.

1.11 Share Capital / Contributed Capital

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

1.12 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party (as defined in the Standard of GRAP on Related Party 
Disclosures) of the reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay or fund employee benefits under a defined benefit plan and are not 
available to the reporting entity’s own creditors (even in liquidation) and cannot be paid to the reporting entity, unless either:

the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the related employee benefit obligations; or

the proceeds are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid.

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:

an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or  
an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits) that are not due to be settled within 
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.
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Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future employment.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific 
current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part 
of those other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which 
the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:  
wages, salaries and social security contributions; 
short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the absences is due to be settled within twelve 
months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related employee service; 
bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related 
service; and  
non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidized goods or services such as housing, cars and cell phones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognize the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected 
to be paid in exchange for that service:

 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity 
recognize that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; 
and as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognized as an expense as the employees render services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-
accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measure the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the 
entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognize the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present legal or constructive obligation to make 
such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative 
but to make the payments.

1.12 Employee Benefits (Continues)
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1.12 Employee Benefits (continued) Post Employment Benefits
 
Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which are payable after the completion of employment.

Post-employment benefit plans are formal or informal arrangements under which an entity provides post-employment benefits for one or more employees.

1.13 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when:

the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; and

a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the 
obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement is recognized when, 
and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. 
The amount recognized for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no longer probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This increase is recognized as an 
interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognized. Provisions are not recognized for future operating deficits.
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If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognized and measured as a provision.

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:

has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:

- the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned;

- the principal locations affected;

- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being terminated;

- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and

- when the plan will be implemented; and

- has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or announcing its main features to   
 those affected by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both:  
 necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and 
 not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the entity is committed to the sale or transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognized in entity combinations that are recognized separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:

the amount that would be recognized as a provision; and

the amount initially recognized less cumulative amortization.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognized. Contingencies are disclosed in note 28.

A Financial Guarantee Contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor 
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

1.13 Provisions and Contingencies (Continues)
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Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications that an outflow of resources may be 
probable are:

financial difficulty of the debtor;

defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor;

breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the 
amended terms; and

a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact on the ability of entities to repay their 
obligations.

Where a fee is received by the entity for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan commitments, it is considered in determining the 
best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is charged and the entity considers that an outflow of economic 
resources is probable, an entity recognizes the obligation at the higher of:

the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

the amount of the fee initially recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue 
from Exchange Transactions.

1.14 Commitments
 
Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognized contractual commitments.

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial statements, if both the following 
criteria are met:

Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or building maintenance services); and 
Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore salary commitments relating to employment 
contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

1.13 Provisions and Contingencies (Continues)
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1.15 Revenue from Exchange Transactions
 
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than 
increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in 
the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

the entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the transaction is recognized by reference to 
the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
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it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;

the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and

the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognized on a straight line basis over the 
specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant 
than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent of the 
expenses recognized that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of completion is determined by services 
performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

Interest

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is recognized when:

It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, and

The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognized, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognized as revenue over the period during which the service is performed.

1.16 Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
 
Non-exchange transactions are defined as transactions where the entity receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value 
in exchange.

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other 
than increases relating to contributions from owners.
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1.16  Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Continues)
 
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized as revenue when:

it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, the amount of the revenue can be measured 
reliably, and 
to the extent that there has been compliance with any restrictions associated with the grant.

The entity assesses the degree of certainty attached to the flow of future economic benefits or service potential on the basis of the available evidence. Certain grants 
payable by one level of government to another are subject to the availability of funds.

Revenue from these grants is only recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity. 
An announcement at the beginning of a financial year that grants may be available for qualifying entities in accordance with an agreed programme may not be sufficient 
evidence of the probability of the flow. Revenue is then only recognized once evidence of the probability of the flow becomes available.

Restrictions on government grants may result in such revenue being recognized on a time proportion basis. Where there is no restriction on the period, such revenue is 
recognized on receipt or when the Act becomes effective, which-ever is earlier.

When government remit grants on a re-imbursement basis, revenue is recognized when the qualifying expense has been incurred and to the extent that any other 
restrictions have been complied with.

Other grants and donations

Other grants and donations are recognized as revenue when:

it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; the amount of the revenue can be measured 
reliably; and 
to the extent that there has been compliance with any restrictions associated with the grant.
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1.16  Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Continues)
 
If goods in-kind are received without conditions attached, revenue is recognized immediately. If conditions are attached, a liability is recognized, which is 
reduced and revenue recognized as the conditions are satisfied.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and subsequently stated 
at amortized cost, less provision for impairment. All trade and other receivables are assessed at least annually for possible impairment. Impairments of trade 
and other receivables are determined in accordance with the accounting policy for impairments. Impairment adjustments are made through the use of an 
allowance account.

Bad debts are written off in the year in which they are identified as irrecoverable.  Amounts receivable within 12 months from the reporting date are classified 
as current.  Interest is charged on overdue accounts.

1.17  Trade and other Payables
 
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

1.18  Borrowing Costs
 
Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs are recognized as an 
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.19  Comparative Figures
 
Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

1.20  Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
 
Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.
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1.20 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure (continued)
 
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognized as an expense in the statement of financial performance in the year that the expenditure was 
incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement 
of financial performance.

1.21 Irregular Expenditure
 
Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorized expenditure, incurred in contravention of or that is not in accordance 
with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including -

(a) this Act; or

(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or

(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires the following (effective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end and/or before finalization of the financial 
statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating 
the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the 
irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the register and the disclosure note to the 
financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant authority 
must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created 
if such a person is liable in law.

Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting authority 
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may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also 
be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against 
the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure 
register.

1.22 Budget Information
 
Entity is subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorizations, which is given effect through appropriation.

General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in accordance with the legally adopted 
budget.

The approved budget is prepared on accrual basis and presented by economic classification.

The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted amounts for the reporting 
period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

1.23 Related Parties
 
The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African Government. As a consequence of 
the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only entities within the provincial sphere of government are considered to 
be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those charged with the governance of 
the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that 
management in their dealings with the entity.

All transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.
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2 New Standards and Interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published but not effective for period ended 31 March 
2017.

GRAP 109: Accounting by Principals and Agents

The objective of this Standard is to outline principles to be used by an entity to assess whether it is party to a principal- agent arrangement, and 
whether it is a principal or an agent in undertaking transactions in terms of such an arrangement. The Standard does not introduce new recogni-
tion or measurement requirements for revenue, expenses, assets and/or liabilities that result from principal-agent arrangements. The Standard 
does however provide guidance on whether revenue, expenses, assets and/or liabilities should be recognized by an agent or a principal, as well 
as prescribe what information should be disclosed when an entity is a principal or an agent.

It furthermore covers Definitions, Identifying whether an entity is a principal or agent, Accounting by a principal or agent, Presentation, Disclosure, 
Transitional provisions and Effective date.

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard. It is unlikely that the standard 
will have a material impact on the entity’s annual Financial Statements.
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3 Property, Plant and Pquipment

2017 2016
Restated

Cost / Accumulated Carrying Cost / Accumulated Carrying
Valuation depreciation value Valuation depreciation value

and and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment

Land 3 700 - 3 700 3 700 - 3 700
Buildings 75 796 (23 563) 52 233 75 796 (22 293) 53 503
Furniture and fixtures 5 376 (3 223) 2 153 4 968 (2 864) 2 104
Motor vehicles 305 (226) 79 305 (206) 99
Office equipment 3 242 (1 449) 1 793 2 073 (1 043) 1 030
IT equipment 12 942 (10 627) 2 315 11 997 (9 613) 2 384
Roads and Bridges 41 167 685 (20 258 821) 20 908 864 41 188 981 (18 130 496) 23 058 485
PPE Under construction 1 300 567 - 1 300 567 531 861 - 531 861
Total 42 569 613 (20 297 909) 22 271 704 41 819 681 (18 166 515) 23 653 166
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3 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)  

 Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2017

Land

Opening 
balance

3 700

Additions

-

Disposal/
Transfer

-

Write off

-

Depreciation

-

Impairment 
loss

-

Total

3 700
Buildings 53 503 - - - (1 270) - 52 233
Furniture and fixtures 2 104 408 - - (359) - 2 153
Motor vehicles 99 - - - (20) - 79
Office equipment 1 030 1 173 - - (410) - 1 793
IT equipment 2 384 945 - - (1 014) - 2 315
Roads and Bridges 23 058 485 607 016 (5 290) (352 891) (2 241 479) (156 977) 20 908 864
PPE Under construction 531 861 926 701 (157 995) - - - 1 300 567

23 653 166 1 536 243 (163 285) (352 891) (2 244 552) (156 977) 22 271 704

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 
2016 Restated

Land

Opening 
balance

3 700

Additions

-

Disposal/
Transfer

-

Write off

-

Depreciation

-

Impairment 
loss

-

Total

3 700
Buildings 54 774 - - - (1 271) - 53 503
Furniture and fixtures 1 789 656 - - (341) - 2 104
Motor vehicles 124 - - - (25) - 99
Office equipment 1 029 311 - - (310) - 1 030
IT equipment 2 957 1 035 - - (1 608) - 2 384
Roads and Bridges 24 776 040 357 683 (24 846) (7 194) (1 933 754) (109 444) 23 058 485
PPE Under construction 313 668 575 877 (357 684) - - - 531 861

25 154 081 935 562 (382 530) (7 194) (1 937 309) (109 444) 23 653 166
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3. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) Note
 
The PPE under construction of R314 million at the beginning of 2016 financial year is after writing-off R819 million. The entity write-off R819 million after a 
thorough investigation of the composition PPE under Construction revealed an amount of R819 million that could not be substantiated by the physical roads 
and bridges under construction. The reason for not being able to substantiate were associated with: 

1.	 Incorrect capitalization of repairs and maintenance between 2012 to 2014 financial,
2.	Failure to transfer the completed infrastructure assets from PPE under construction, and
3.	 Impairment of infrastructure assets which shows that they are not understated.

4. Intangible Assets

2017
2016  

Restated

Cost/  
Valuation

Accumulated 
amortization and 

accumulated
impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost/ 
Valuation

Accumulated 
amortization and 

accumulated
impairment

Carrying 
value

Computer software 1 444 (1 328) 116 1 304 (1 264) 40
Website design 1 661 (1 661) - 1 661 (1 661) -
Total 3 105 (2 989) 116 2 965 (2 925) 40

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017

Computer software 40 140 (64) 116

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2016 Restated

Computer software        111  (71)  40

Figures in Rand thousand 2017 2016

Opening 
balance

Opening 
balance

Additions Amortisation

Amortisation

Total

Total
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5. Other Receivables

DME Borrow pit deposits
Other receivables relates to refundable deposits made to the Department of Minerals 
and Energy for rehabilitation of borrow pits used for entity's projects.

2 760 2 530

At amortized cost
DME Borrow pit deposits 2 760 2 530

Total other financial assets 5 520 5 060

Non-current assets
Residual interest at cost 2 760 2 530

6. Inventories

Consumable stores 600 435

Details of inventory
 
Consumables at year end consist of office stationery, cleaning and grocery items.
Inventory recognized as an expense and included in general expenses amounted to R563 335, (2016:R518 225).

Figures in Rand thousand 2017 2016
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7. Receivables from Exchange Transactions

Trade debtors 820 870
Provision for doubtful debts (651) (735)
Prepayments 1 848 378
Students and Staff bursaries 998 616
Other receivables - 104
Accrued interest 45 947
North West DPWR 21 737 -

24 797 2 180

Receivables from North West DPWR

Receivable from North West Department of Public Works and Roads, relates to payments made on behalf of the department for a joint 
project (Project number: T392B).

Trade and other receivables impaired

The ageing of the receivables impaired is as follows:
Current to 3 months 35 -

Over 3 months 616 735

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
Opening balance 735 447
Provision for impairment (84) 288

651 735
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8. Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions
Government grants and subsidies - 7 616

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 3 2
Bank balances 1 475 146 285

1 478 146 287

10. Share Capital / Contributed Capital

Authorized

100 Ordinary shares of R1 each 1 1

Reconciliation of number of shares issued:
Issue of shares – ordinary shares 1 1

100 Ordinary shares issued are held by the MEC of Limpopo Department of Public Works, Roads and Infrastructure.
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11. Finance Lease Obligation

 Minimum lease payments due
-	within one year 392 -
-	in second to fifth year inclusive 621 -

Present value of minimum lease payments 1 013 -

Present value of minimum lease payments due

-	within one year 313 -
-	in second to fifth year inclusive 569 -

882 -

Non-current liabilities 569 -
Current liabilities 313 

-

882 -

RAL leased eight multifunctional printers from BCM Digison CC from 1 November 2016 for 3 years. Thirty  six lease 
instalments of R32 671.92 each are payable monthly in advance. Implicit interest is rate is 10.67% per annum. At the end of 
the lease term, BCM Digison CC will retain the ownership of the printing machines. The lease agreement does not provide 
for contingent lease payments. At the inception of the lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments amounts to at 
least substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset.

The entity’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.
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12.   Payables from Exchange Transactions
Trade payables 251 210 37 545
13th Cheque 814 776
Employee accruals 2 621 2 600
Accrued expenses 5 109 403
Retention fees 38 927 25 680
Other payables 91 65

298 772 67 069

Ageing of trade payables

Current (0 - 30 days) 140 901 33 864
31 - 60 Days 6 422 3 564
61 - 90 Days 59 677 230
Over 90 Days 44 210 -

251 210 37 658

Figures in Rand thousand 2017 2016
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Figures in Rand thousand 2017 2016

13.   Payables from Non-exchange Transactions
Government grants received but not spent  
Other payables own revenue - LDPWRI

     -

  4 578
153 902

-

 4 578 153 902

Reconciliation for Grants payable (non-exchange)

Opening Balance  153 902 -

Government grant received  893 417 836 594
Less: Grants spent during the year (1 047 319) (682 692)

- 153 902

14.   Revenue
Other income  1 951 2 611
Interest received  3 656 5 594
Government grants & subsidies  1 047 319 690 307
Private sector contributions  60 157 -

Transfers of roads by other entities  349 936 63 436
 1 463 019 761 948

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are as 
follows:
Other income 1 951 2 611
Interest received 3 656 5 594

5 607 8 205

The amount included in revenue arising from Non exchanges of goods or services 
are as follows:
Government grants & subsidies  1 047 319 690 307
Private sector contributions  60 157 -

Transfers of roads by other entities  349 936 63 436
 1 457 412 753 743
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15.   Other Income
Application fees 640 477

Rental billboards 696 706
Sundry income 102 -
Tender documents 513 1 428

1 951 2 611

16.   Interest Income

Bank 3 602  5 526
Interest charged on trade and other receivables 54 68

3 656 5 594

Figures in Rand thousand 2017 2016

17.   Government Grants and Subsidies
Operating grants
Government grant - Administration 152 448 89 692
Government grants - Infrastructure projects 894 871 600 615

1 047 319 690 307

Details on private sector contributions

RAL has entered into agreements with few private sector entities whereby these sector entities undertook to contribute to roads construction within their operating 
vicinity. The agreements stipulate how much each party, RAL and private sector entity, should contribute towards road constructions. The ownership of all the 
roads jointly constructed with private sector entities belong to RAL as DPWRI implementing agency.

Figures in Rand thousand 2017 2016
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18.   Private Sector Contributions
Private sector  - Conditional 60 157 -

19.   Transfers of roads by other entities

Non exchange revenue - Road Pavement  
Non exchange revenue - Bridges

349 936
-

- 
63 436

349 936 63 436

This revenue relates to roads and bridges that were previous under management of various Municipalities and SANRAL and subsequently transferred to RAL at 
no cost.

20.   Employee Related Costs
Basic 40 134 34 324

Bonus 2 628 -
UIF 234 140
Leave pay provision charge 661 536
Other allowances (Acting allowance) 597 956
Medical Aid - Company contributions 737 645
Post-retirement benefit plan -defined contribution 5 060 4 369
Settlement and others 1 842 197
Travel and housing allowances 15 684 13 069

67 577 54 236

21.   Impairment of Assets
Impairments
Property, plant and equipment 156 977 109 444

22.   Finance Costs
Trade and other payables 14 8

Finance leases 34 -

48 8

23.   Provision for Bad Debts
Contributions to debt impairment provision (84) 288

Figures in Rand thousand 2017 2016
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Figures in Rand thousand 2017 2016

24.   General Expenses
Internal Audit fees - 605
Advertising 5 467 9 785
Assessment rates & municipal charges 1 255 1 186
Auditors remuneration 2 272 2 434
Bank charges 54 55
Cleaning - 251
Computer expenses 20 174
Consulting and professional fees 43 798 3 182
Consumables 101 327
Entertainment 2 37
Compassionate gifts and farewell - 50
Insurance 1 436 4 346
Conferences and seminars 283 570
Motor vehicle expenses 7 6
Accommodation 540 555
Postage and courier 8 18
Printing and stationery 604 726
Security 1 054 947
Subscriptions and membership fees 84 104
Telephone and fax 1 333 1 030
Training 532 250
Subsistence and travel 4 651 3 622
Assets expensed - 6
Uniforms - 171
Licenses 1 102 581
Catering expenses 300 114
Rentals 626 485
Legal expenses 7 385 8 898
Bursaries 154 74
Court settlements 5 014 450
Directors remunerations 2 629 2 517
Inventory loss 11 -
Recruitment costs 840 927

81 562 44 483

25.   Auditors' Remuneration
Fees 2 272 2 434
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Figures in Rand thousand 2017 2016

26.   Cash Generated from Operations
Deficit
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization

(1 588 452)

2 244 613

(1 446 470)

1 937 379
Write offs 259 097 32 040
Impairment deficit 156 977 109 444
Debt impairment (84) 288
Transfer unspent funds - (118 685)
Transfer own revenue (1 028) (6 947)
Transfers of roads by other entities and private sector
Changes in working capital:
Inventories

(409 326)

(165)

(63 436)

(69)
Receivables from exchange transactions (890) (466)
Consumer debtors 84 2 164
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 7 616 146 287
Payables from exchange transactions 1 276 -

669 718 591 529
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Figures in Rand thousand 2017 2016

27. Commitments

Authorized capital expenditure Approved 

and contracted

The commitment expenditure relates to Road construction and maintenance as well as administration related assets and 
expenditure and will be financed through available bank balance and government grant.

Operating leases - as lessee (expense) Minimum 
lease payments due
- within one year - 16

Roads Construction 2 444 334 1 331 672
Roads Maintenance 195 735 437 104

2 640 069 1 768 776

Total capital commitments
Approved and contracted 2 640 069 1 768 776

Authorised operational expenditure

Approved and contracted
Property, Plant and equipment 40 6
Intangible assets - 609
Other commitments 7 014 48 641

7 054 49 256

Total operational commitments
Approved and contracted 7 054 49 256

Total commitments

Total commitments
Authorised capital expenditure 2 640 069 1 768 776
Authorised operational expenditure 7 054 49 256

2 647 123 1 818 032
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The entity leased photo copiers from Nashua for a period of 3 years, effective from 1 June 2013. The lease payment was
R 7 905 per month with no annual escalation. No contingent rent was payable. The lease ended during 2015/16. There were 
no defaults or breaches and no terms or conditions were renegotiated during the reporting period.

Operating leases - as lessee (expense) 
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year - 170

The entity leased computer server from CHM Vuwani for a period of 3 years, effective from 1 June 2014. The lease payment 
of R170 495 is payable annually in advance and there is no annual escalation. No contingent rent is payable. The lease 
agreement ended during current year.

28. Contingencies

Litigations are in the process against the entity relating to various disputes with various parties seeking damages. The total 
claims as at 31 March 2017 amounts to R85 883 587.90 . The entity’s lawyers and management consider the likelihood of 
some of the actions against the entity being successful and the estimated settlement cost as at 31 March 2017 is R49 985 
075.40.
 
Should the action be successful the entity does not have insurance cover to cover litigation costs and claims. 

It is not practical to disclose detailed information of contingent liabilities on the financial statement as a results, a detailed 
list of contingent liabilities is available at entity’s offices.

Figures in Rand thousand 2017 2016
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Figures in Rand thousand 2017 2016

29. Related Parties

Relationships
Directors Refer to Directors report note
Ultimate controlling entity Limpopo Department of Public Works, Roads & Infrastructure
Key Management Refer to note on Executive management remunerations
Shareholder with significant influence MEC of LDPWRI Other related party

Related party balances

Amounts included in Trade receivable (Trade Payable) regarding related parties

Limpopo Department of Public Works, Roads and Infrastructure - 7 616

Limpopo Department of Public Works, Roads and Infrastructure 4 578 (153 902)

Related party transactions

Transfer of own revenue
Limpopo Department of Public Works, Roads and Infrastructure 1 028 -

government grant received
Limpopo Department of Public Works, Roads and Infrastructure 1 047 319 1 047 319

Key management information

Remuneration of Directors and Management

Non-Executive Directors
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Executive management

2017

Acting Basic salary Travel and Performance 
Allowance   housing  bonus

allowance
Name
H Magopa (Act CFO) 244 306 146 -

Medical and 
pension 

contribution

52

Total

748
L Fosu (CFO) - 117 - - - 117
B Mokhothu (Executive - 1 118 556 15
Manager: Engineering)
J Boshielo (Exec Manager: - 1 027 389 19

177

151

1 866

1 586
Corporate services)
S Pudikebekwa (Act Exc: 122 347 221 - 6 696
Monitoring & evaluation)
TC Kekana (Company - 922 351 59 138 1 470
Secretary)
S Saimen (Manager: - 565 275 47 95 982
Internal Audit)

366 4 402 1 938 140 619 7 465

Figures in Rand thousand 2017 2016

29.   Related Parties (continued)
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2016
Other Basic salary Travel and Medical and Total

Allowance housing pension

allowance contribution

Name

KA Rabothata (CFO) - 439 288 5 732

H Magopa (Act CFO) 229 739 239 86 1 293

B Mokhothu (Executive - 173 87 28 288

Manager: Engineering)

TC Kekana (Company - 674 260 104 1 038

Secretary)

S Saimen (Manager: - 528 266 78 872

Internal Audit)

229 2 553 1 140 301 4 223

Name and position Appointment End date

date

L Fosu (CFO) 23/02/2017 In service

H Magopa (Act CFO) 18/05/2015 30/09/2016

B Mokhothu (Executive Manager: Engineering) 01/01/2016 30/04/2017

TC Kekana (Company Secretary) 01/06/2015 In service

S Saimen (Manager: Internal Audit) 01/02/2014 In service

S Pudikebekwa (Act Exc: Monitoring & evaluation) 21/04/2016 30/10/2016

J Boshielo (Exec Manager: Corporate services) 01/01/2016 In service
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30.   Directors Emoluments
Non-Executive 

Directors 2017

M.S Ralebipi ( Chairperson)

Retention fees
894

Total

894

W.N.G Moleko (Board Member) 385 385

M.P.K Tshivhase (Board Member) 385 385

M.H Kekana (Board Member) 385 385

2 049 2 049

M.S Ralebipi ( Chairperson)

Retention 
fees

914

Total

914

W.N.G Moleko (Board Member) 351 351

M.P.K Tshivhase (Board Member) 317 317

M.H Kekana (Board Member) 712 712

2 294 2 294

Executive Director

2017

MP Matji (CEO)

 
Basic salary

1 454

Medical & Pension 
contribution

214

Travel and Housing 
Allowance

738

Performance 
Bonus

119

Total

2 525

2016
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MP Matji (CEO)

Basic salary

1 334

Medical & Pension 
contributions

200

Travel and 
Housing 

Allowance
689

Total

2 223

Audit & Risk Committee Members

2017

M Mokoka (Chairperson)

Retention 
fees

209

Total

209

G.M Maluleke (Member) 172 172

Z Samsam (Member) 198 198

579 579

2016

M Mokoka (Chairperson)

Retention 
fees

71

Total

71

G.M Maluleke (Member) 86 86

Z Samsam (Member) 82 82

239       239

31.   Prior period error and Comparative figures
Comparative figures have been restated to correct the prior period errors set out below.

The agency identified transactions that were incorrectly recorded in relation to prior year which required restatement of 2015/16 
financial statements.
The effects of the correction of the prior year errors are as follows

30.   Directors Emoluments (Continued)
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Statement of financial position - extract
Comparative figures 
previously reported

Reclassificati 
on

After 
reclassification

Receivables from exchange transactions 2 479 (299) 2 180
Property, plant and equipment 26 655 923 (3 002 757) 23 653 166
Payables from exchange transactions 66 346 723 67 069

Total 26 724 748 (3 002 333) 23 722 415
 
Statement of financial performance - extract

Comparative figures 
previously reported

Reclassificati 
on

After 
reclassification

Project expense 5 302 24 739 30 041
Depreciation and amortization 2 329 944 (392 565) 1 937 379
Employee related costs 53 620 616 54 236
General expenses 44 186 297 44 483
Infrastructure write offs - 32 040 32 040

Total 2 433 052 (334 873) 2 098 179

31.   Prior period error and Comparative Figures
Comparative figures have been restated to correct the prior period errors set out below.

The agency identified transactions that were incorrectly recorded in relation to prior year which required restatement of 
2015/16 financial statements.
The effects of the correction of the prior year errors are as follows
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32.   Risk Management 

financial risk management 

Liquidity risk

The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future 
commitments and through the compilation and monitoring of cash flow forecasts, as well as ensuring that a satisfactory level of cash and cash equivalents are 
maintained.

At 31 March 2017 Less than 1 year Between 1

and 2 years

Between 2 and 5 
years

Over 5 years

Trade and other payables 298 772 - - -

Credit Risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The entity only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and 
limits exposure to any one counter-party.
 
Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. If customers are independently 
rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial 
position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. 

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:
Receivables from exchange transactions 24 808 2 180
Non-current receivables 2 760 2 530
Cash and cash equivalent
 
Market Risk  
 
Interest rate risk

1 478 146 287

 
As the entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The entity is exposed to the 
interest rate risk.
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33. Going Concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be 
available to finance future operations and that the realization of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the 
ordinary course of business.

The ability of the entity to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is that the Directors continue to 
procure funding for the ongoing operations for the entity.

34.   Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
Opening Balance 5 903 5 895

Add: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - Current year 14 8

Less: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure recovered (1) -

Less: Amount condoned by the Board of directors (5 902) -

14 5 903

# Current year fruitless expenditure of R11 700 resulted from penalties for late cancellation of Accommodation and R 2 145.00 penalties for no show for 
Accommodation.

35.   Irregular Expenditure
Opening balance 1 478 426 1 826 417
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 68 080 30 854
Add: Additions relating to prior years 1 059 957 -
Add: Irregular expenditure identified by AGSA 66 991 -
Add: Prior year irregular identified by AGSA - 17 817
Less: Prior year adjustments # (434 769) -
Less: Amounts condoned (582 948) (396 662)

1 655 737 1 478 426
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35.   Irregular Expenditure (Continued)

Details of irregular expenditure are as follows:

1. SCM process not being followed 28 814 -

2. No SCM supporting documentation 21 119 -

3. Projects ceded to RAL by the Department of Transport without procurement process 
documentation

12 135 -

# Previously the total appointment amount was disclosed as irregular expenditure instead of 
the actual expenditure incurred.

- 434,769

- -

36. Depreciation and Amortization

Property, plant and equipment 2 244 551 1 937 309

Intangible assets 62 70

2 244 613 1 937 379

37. Project Expenses
 
Repairs and maintenance on road infrastructure consist of expenditure on infrastructure not capitalized (House hold maintenance routine maintenance 
etc)

Repairs and Maintenance: Road Infrastructure 241 163 30 041
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